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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The registered office of CATIC International Holdings
Limited is situated at Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue,
Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda.

During the year, the Company was involved in
investment holding and the Group was principally
engaged in undertaking building facade projects. These
projects involve the design, manufacture and
installation of fabricated aluminium and stainless steel
products for buildings, such as curtain wall and
cladding systems, windows, doors, skylights and other
related products. The Group was also engaged in the
generation and sale of electric and steam power in
the regional industrial areas of Hangzhou in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) through its
70% owned subsidiary, Hangzhou Sealand Electric
Power Company Limited. During the year, the Group
also earned revenue from its interests in the net income
of a jointly-controlled operation of the ultimate holding
company in relation to the helicopter development,

manufacturing and distribution business (note 15).

In the opinion of the directors, China National Aero-
Technology Import & Export Corporation (“CATIC”), a
state-owned enterprise in the PRC, is the Company’s
ultimate holding company, which is owned as to 50%
by China Aviation Industries Corporation | and 50%
by Aviation Industries Corporation Il, both of which
are directly under the regulation of the State Council
of the PRC.
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(“SSAPs”)

The following recently-issued and revised SSAPs are
effective for the first time in the preparation of the

current year’s financial statements.

SSAP 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial
statements

SSAP 11 (Revised) Foreign currency translation

SSAP 15 (Revised) Cash flow statements

SSAP 34 Employee benefits

These SSAPs prescribe new accounting measurement
and disclosure practices. The major effects on the
Group’s accounting policies and on the amounts
disclosed in these financial statements of adopting

these SSAPs are summarised as follows:

SSAP 1 (Revised) prescribes the basis for the
presentation of financial statements and sets out
guidelines for their structure and minimum
requirements for the content thereof. The principal
impact of the revision to this SSAP is that a
consolidated summary statement of changes in equity
is now presented on page 35 of the annual report in
place of the consolidated statement of recognised gains
and losses that was previously required.

SSAP 11 (Revised) prescribes the basis for the
translation of foreign currency transactions and
financial statements. The principal impact of the
revision of this SSAP on the consolidated financial
statements is that the profit and loss accounts of
overseas subsidiaries and associates are now translated
to Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year whereas previously they were
translated at the exchange rates at the balance sheet
date. The adoption of the revised SSAP 11 has had no
material effect on the financial statements.
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS
OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE
(“SSAPs”) (continued)

SSAP 15 (Revised) prescribes the revised format for
the cash flow statement. The principal impact of the
revision of this SSAP is that the consolidated cash
flow statement now presents cash flows under three
headings, cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities, rather than the five headings
previously required. In addition, cash flows from
overseas subsidiaries arising during the year are now
translated to Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
at the dates of the cash flows or, if appropriate, at the
weighted average exchange rates, whereas previously
they were translated at the exchange rates at the
balance sheet date, and the definition of cash
equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement
has been revised. The consolidated cash flow statement
for the current year and comparative figures have been
presented in accordance with the revised SSAP 15.
Further details of these changes are included in the
accounting policies for “Cash and cash equivalents”
and “Foreign currencies” in notes 3 and 31(a) to the

financial statements.

SSAP 34 prescribes the recognition and measurement
criteria to apply to employee benefits, together with
the required disclosures in respect thereof. The
adoption of this SSAP has resulted in no change to the
previously adopted accounting treatments for employee
benefits except that additional disclosures are now
required in respect of the Company’s share option
scheme, as detailed in note 29 to the financial
statements. These share option scheme disclosures are
similar to those required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) previously included
in the Report of the Directors, which are now required
to be included in the notes to the financial statements
as a consequence of the SSAP 34.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong SSAPs, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for the periodic
remeasurement of investment properties and certain
fixed assets as set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2002.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are consolidated from or to their
effective dates of acquisition or disposal, respectively.
All significant intercompany transactions and balances
within the Group have been eliminated on

consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the results and net assets of the
Company’s subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company whose financial and
operating policies the Company controls, directly or
indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of the subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s profit and loss account to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of
the equity voting rights and over which it is in a

position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
profit and loss account and consolidated reserves,
respectively. The Group’s interests in associates are
stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
profit and loss account to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s interests in
associates are treated as long term assets and are stated

at cost less any impairment losses.
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
associates represents the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Group’s share of the fair values of
the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as at the
date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life
of twenty years. In the case of associates, any
unamortised goodwill is included in the carrying
amount thereof, rather than as a separately identified
asset on the consolidated balance sheet.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

SSAP 30 “Business combinations” was adopted as at 1
January 2001. Prior to that date, goodwill arising on
acquisitions was eliminated against consolidated
reserves in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of
SSAP 30, the Group applied the transitional provision
of SSAP 30 that permitted such goodwill to remain
eliminated against consolidated reserves. Goodwill on
acquisitions subsequent to 1 January 2001 is treated
according to the SSAP 30 goodwill accounting policy
above.

On disposal of subsidiaries and associates, the gain or
loss on disposal is calculated by reference to the net
assets at the date of disposal, including the attributable
amount of goodwill which remains unamortised and

any relevant reserves, as appropriate.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed annually
and written down for impairment when it is considered
necessary. A previously recognised impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed unless the impairment loss
was caused by a specific external event of an
exceptional nature that was not expected to recur, and
subsequent external events have occurred which have

reversed the effect of that event.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial asset under Project EC120

The investment under Project EC120 represents a
contractual right to receive cash in the future from
another enterprise and has been treated as a financial
asset, which was initially recorded at fair value of the
consideration given, including cost of acquisition
associated therewith, to acquire 80% interest in the
net income in relation to the Project EC120 accrued
to CATIC. Interest in Project EC120 is stated at cost
less impairment losses, if any. Further details of the
Group’s interest in Project EC120 are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

The carrying amount of the asset is reviewed annually
and written down for impairment when it is considered

necessary.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(@)  from the rendering of contracting works services,
based on the stage of completion of the
construction contracts as further explained in
the accounting policy “Recognition of income

from construction contracts”;

(b)  from the sale of electric and steam power, based
on actual consumption derived from the reading
of meters during the year;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) from the development, manufacture and
distribution of helicopters, when the Group’s
right to receive its share of profit from Project
EC120 has been established (note 15);

(d) from the rendering of services, when the services
are rendered;

(e) interest income, on a time proportion basis
taking into account the principal outstanding
and the effective interest rate applicable;

() rental income, on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms;

(g) government subsidies, on cash receipt basis; and

(h) income from long term investment, on an

accrual basis.
Recognition of income from construction contracts

Profit on long term construction contracts is recognised
in the profit and loss account on the percentage of
completion basis when the outcome of each contract
can be ascertained with reasonable certainty and when
a contract is at least 20% complete, by reference to
the total estimated cost of such contract, after making
due allowance for contingencies. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably
and when a contract is less than 20% complete,
revenue is recognised only to the extent that contract
costs incurred are recoverable. Provision is made for
any foreseeable losses as soon as such losses are
anticipated by management.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Recognition of income from construction contracts
(continued)

The Group makes claims for additional work done,
which may arise either under specific circumstances
provided for under the contracts, or due to variations
to the contract specifications made by its customers.
Where the amounts of such claims have not been
formally agreed at the balance sheet date, the likely
amount receivable as estimated by management, based
on all of the information available at the time, is
included in the contract value in determining the
estimated profit or foreseeable loss on the contract.

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of
whether there is any indication of impairment of any
asset, or whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss previously recognised for an asset in
prior years may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
calculated as the higher of the asset’s value in use or

its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss
account in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of an asset,
however not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the
profit and loss account in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, when
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets, other than investment properties and
construction in progress, are stated at cost or valuation
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after fixed assets
have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the profit and
loss account in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the
use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as

an additional cost of the fixed asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

Changes in the values of fixed assets, other than
investment properties, are dealt with as movements in
the revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the profit
and loss account. Any subsequent revaluation surplus
is credited to the profit and loss account to the extent
of the deficit previously charged. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
transferred to retained profits as a movement in

reserves.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method
to write off the cost of each asset over the following

estimated useful lives:

Leasehold land/land use rights Over the remaining
lease terms
Leasehold buildings 25 years or over the
remaining lease terms,

whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 4 years

Plant and machinery 5 years

Generation plant and 15 years
related structure

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 4 years

Tools and moulds 4 years

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed

asset recognised in the profit and loss account is the

difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents fixed assets which
are in their acquisition phase and is stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. The
acquisition phase of an asset includes the period when
the asset is under construction, installation and testing.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction together
with borrowing costs incurred during the asset
acquisition period that theoretically could have been
avoided if expenditure for the asset had not been made.
The capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use are completed.
Construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate category of fixed asset when it is completed
and ready for its intended use, notwithstanding any
delays in the issue of the relevant commissioning

certificates by the appropriate authorities.
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
in respect of which construction work and development
have been completed and which are intended to be
held on a long term basis for their investment potential,
any rental income being negotiated at arm’s length.
Such properties are not depreciated and are stated at
their open market values on the basis of annual
professional valuations performed at the end of each
financial year. Changes in the values of investment
properties are dealt with as movements in the
investment property revaluation reserve. If the total of
this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on a
portfolio basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
the profit and loss account. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the profit and loss account to
the extent of the deficit previously charged.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

On disposal of an investment property, the relevant
portion of the investment property revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is released
to the profit and loss account.

Leased assets

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the profit and loss account on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases are charged
to the profit and loss account on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Club debentures

Club debentures are held for long term purposes and
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Long term investments

Long term investments are non-trading investments in
unlisted equity securities intended to be held on a
long term basis. The investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses, on an individual investment

basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale represent interests in land and
buildings in respect of which construction work and
development have been completed and which are
intended to be held for sale. Such properties are not
depreciated and are stated at the lower of carrying
cost and net realisable value. Carrying cost represents
the carrying net book value, which is the amounts
transferred from land and buildings in the case of
properties previously held for self use, or the amounts
of the underlying debts extinguished for those
properties that have been exchanged for settlement of
the relevant debts. Net realisable value is determined
by reference to the prevailing market prices on an
individual property basis. Any impairment in value from
the carrying cost is charged to the profit and loss

account.

The gain or loss on disposal of a property held for
sale recognised in the profit and loss account is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant property.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts of a long term nature are stated
at cost, plus any attributable profits, less any
foreseeable losses, and progress payments received and
receivable. Cost includes all direct material and labour
costs, including subcontracted costs, and overheads,
including depreciation on plant and machinery used
in construction projects, and capitalised interest on
loans to finance specific projects. Provision is made
for foreseeable losses as they are anticipated by
management.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Construction contracts (continued)

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is treated as an amount due from contract
customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is treated as an amount due to contract

customers.
Inventories

Inventories for construction contracts, comprising raw
materials and sub-materials, are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value, after making due
allowance for any obsolete or slow-moving items. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to the
underlying specific contracts in progress in which the

inventories will ultimately be used.

Inventories for the generation of electric and steam
power, comprising mainly coal and spare parts and
consumables for repairs and maintenance of machinery
and equipment, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value, after making due allowance for any
obsolete or slow-moving items. Cost is determined on
the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended

use or sale.
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet date of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the

profit and loss account.

Provisions for warranties granted by the Group are
recognised based on past experience of the level of

repairs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained earnings within
the capital and reserves section in the balance sheet,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party, or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or

corporate entities.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
for significant timing differences in the recognition of
revenue and expenses for tax and financial reporting
purposes, except where it is considered to be probable
that the tax effects of such deferrals will continue in
the foreseeable future. A deferred tax asset is not
recognised until its realisation is assured beyond
reasonable doubt.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the
applicable exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated at the applicable exchange rates ruling at
that date. Exchange differences are dealt with in the
profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries and associates are translated into Hong
Kong dollars using the net investment method. The
profit and loss accounts of overseas subsidiaries and
associates are translated to Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year, and their
balance sheets are translated to Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The
resulting translation differences are included in the
exchange fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated to Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated to Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Prior to the adoption of the revised SSAPs 11 and 15
during the year, as explained in note 2 to the financial
statements, the profit and loss accounts of overseas
subsidiaries and an associate and the cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries were translated to Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
The adoption of the revised SSAP 11 has had no
material effect on the financial statements, while the
adoption of the revised SSAP 15 has resulted in
changes to the layout of the consolidated cash flow
statement, further details of which are set out in note
31(a) to the financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the balance sheet date is
permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual
is made at the balance sheet date for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year
by the employees and carried forward.

Prior to the adoption of SSAP 34 during the year, as
explained in note 2 to the financial statements, the
Group did not accrue for paid annual leave carried
forward at the balance sheet date. This change in
accounting policy has had no material effect on the
amounts previously recorded in the financial statements
and therefore no prior year adjustment has been made.

Employment Ordinance long service payments
Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
required number of years of service to the Group in
order to be eligible for long service payments under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event of
the termination of their employment. The Group is
liable to make such payments in the event that such a
termination of employment meets the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance. A contingent
liability is disclosed in respect of possible future long
service payments to employees, as a number of current
employees have achieved the required number of years
of service to the Group at the balance sheet date in
order to be legible for long service payments under
the Employment Ordinance if their employment is
terminated in the circumstances specified. A provision
has not been recognised in respect of possible future
long service payments to employees, as it is not
considered probable that the situation will result in a
material future outflow of resources from the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension scheme and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “Ordinance”) for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant
income as defined under the Ordinance and are
charged to the profit and loss account as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the Scheme.
The assets of the Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the Scheme.

Prior to the Scheme being effective, the Group operated
a defined contribution provident fund for those
employees who were eligible and had elected to
participate in the fund. This fund operated in a similar
way to the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme, except that when an employee left
the fund prior to his/her interest in the Group's
employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group were reduced by
the relevant amount of forfeited contributions. Upon
the implementation of the Scheme with effect from 1
December 2000, the provident fund was frozen and
no further contributions by the Group or the eligible
employees were made after that date. When eligible
employees leave the Group, they receive their
entitlements pursuant to the existing rules of this fund.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension scheme and other retirement benefits
(continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which
operates in the PRC are required to participate in a
defined contribution retirement scheme. All employees
are entitled to an annual pension equal to a fixed
proportion of the average basic salary amount within
the geographical area of their last employment at their
retirement date. This PRC subsidiary is required to make
contributions to a local social security bureau at a
rate of 21% of the previous year’s average basic salaries
within the geographical area where the employees are
under employment with this PRC subsidiary. This PRC
subsidiaries has no obligation for the payment of
pension benefits beyond the annual contributions to
the local social security bureau as set out above. The
contributions are charged to the profit and loss account
as they become payable in accordance with the rules

of the defined contribution retirement scheme.

Share options scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. The financial impact of share
options granted under the share option scheme is not
recorded in the Company’s or the Group’s balance
sheet until such time as the options are exercised, and
no charge is recorded in the profit and loss account or
balance sheet for their cost. Upon the exercise of share
options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by
the Company as additional share capital at the nominal
value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise
price per share over the nominal value of the shares is
recorded by the Company in the share premium
account. Options which are cancelled prior to their
exercise date, or which lapse, are deleted from the
register of outstanding options.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management. For the purpose of the balance sheet,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two
segment formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting
basis, by business segment; and (ii) on a secondary

segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary

details of the business segments are as follows:

(@)  the facade contracting works segment engages
in the design, manufacture and installation of
fabricated aluminium and stainless steel
products for buildings, such as curtain wall and
cladding systems, windows, doors, skylights and
other related products;
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)  the electric and steam power supply segment
engages in the generation and sale of electric
and steam power in the regional industrial areas
of Hangzhou in the PRC;

(c)  the aero-technology related business segment
engages in the development, manufacturing and
distribution of EC120 helicopters; and

(d)  the long term investments segment engages in
equity investment holding in certain companies.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues and results are attributed to the segments
based on the location of the customers, and assets are
attributed to the segments based on the location of
the assets.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

—RECFEH

(@) Business segments

The following tables present revenue and profit/
(loss) information regarding business segments
for the years ended 31 December 2002 and
2001, and certain asset, liability and
expenditure information regarding business
segments as at 31 December 2002 and 2001.

PEMZERATERZERERA A

4. TEER (B)

(a)

A=+ —BLEERER
52 WERRF S (B

Group &EE
Facade Electric and steam Aero-technology Long term
contracting works power supply related business investments Consolidated
RENEEHIR ENRAAHE BRMZRTZER RARE GAEE
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
S®¥-F _TT-F T¥¥"F _TT-F Z¥Y"F _TT-F 2YR"F _TT-F 2RP=F -3
HK$000  HK$'000 ~ HK$7000  HK$'000 ~ HK$/000  HKS’000  HK$000  HK$'000 — HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx FEr TEm TEr  TEx TEr. TEx TEn| TEx TEx
Segment revenue: PRME:
Turnover 1 560,150 309,417 71,688 48,262 6,280 - - - 638,118 357,679
Other revenue Efolz 399 39 3,534 3,405 - - 2,000 = 5,933 3,444
Total WseE 560,549 309456 75222 51,667 6280 - 2,000 - 644051 361,123
Segment results AREE 8884 5354 11,927 (33703 6,116 ~ 2000 (36415 28927 (64,764)
Interest income, FEKA-
rental income and BERAR
unallocated gains REHHE 4,114 6,813
Unallocated expenses AEHER (9,646)  (11,483)
Profit/(loss) from mEEH/
operating activities (B8) 23,395 (69,434)
Finance costs BREY (1,834) (1912
Share of loss of an AMEBERR
associate E# - (71) (6) - (6) (71)
Profit/loss) before tax REiaas/ (68) 255 (71,417)
Tax HE (3,074) (799)
Profit/(loss) before Rt VURRERZEF/
minority interests (B#) 18481 (72,216)
Minority interests LURFER (3,159  2,8%
Net profit/(loss) REEEET/
attributable to (B#)
shareholders FE 15,322 (69,320)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@)

Business segments (continued)

Segment assets

Interest in an associate

Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment information:

Depreciation

Unallocated amounts

Capital expenditure

Unallocated amounts

Impairment losses
Deficit on revaluation
of an investment
property (unallocated)
Deficit/(surplus) on
revaluation of
fixed assets
Amortisation of goodwill
Provision for/
(write back of)

doubtful receivables

AAREE

=

RELE

Rl

=

AARAE

Atk

AHREH
E
AARRE

BRRX
AEARE

HEER
RANEFER
WiE
(&%)
BEAEEMR
RE/
()
HEER
ERRERE/
(Bm)

31 December 2002 —ZTZET _F + -4 =+ —H

4. DEEH (&

(a) BREXK&D (&)

Facade Electric and steam Aero-technology Long term
contracting works power supply related business investments Consolidated
KESNBEHIR EORENHE ERRZRM RS RERE &REA
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
SRR CTT-F SR8°F TTF SR9CF C5TF SRR-F DTT-F SR8-F J1TF
HK$000  HK$'000 ~ HK$/000  HK$'000 ~ HK$/000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$'000
fér TEr TéEx TEr TEx TEr  TEx TEr TR TER
430,724 329646 175111 173213 46,039 - 200 200 652,074 503,059
- - - - 5562 - - S 556 -
430,724 329646 175111 173213 51,601 = 200 200~ 657,636 503,059
117,947 75,456
775,583 578,515
Lt e —
312,252 221,590 34,663 38,995 942 - - - 347,857 260,585
1,233 1227
349,090 261,812
I
3,807 3,209 8,729 7,484 - = - = 12,536 10,693
233 231
12,769 10,924
7,487 3,488 5,026 7,232 - = - = 12,513 10,720
13 103
12,526 10,823
- - - 23,006 - - - 36,415 = 59,421
= = = = = = = - 1400 1,800
- - (2,649) 8,506 - = - = (2,649) 8,566
- = 2,382 3,462 - = - = 2,382 3,462
2,030 2,825 (2,094) 6,944 - = - = (64) 9,769
I

CATIC International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002
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—RECFEH

FEMERMERZERERA T

31 December 2002 — T T —_F +=- A =+ —H

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)  Geographical segments

T EER (B)

(b) BRHEE D

The following table presents revenue and certain ATINRTDERAEE R
asset and expenditure information for the WERE Dz REmRETE
Group’s geographical segments. ERFAXER -
Elsewhere
Hong Kong in the PRC Consolidated
A O H At 3t B GAKE
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
S88-F _2T-4 C2R-E _TT-F ZRR-E _TF-
HK$’000 HK$'000 ~HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000
Té&x TEr TExm ThEr TEx TiEx
Segment revenue: PEME:
Turnover L 481,000 301,519 157,118 56,160 638,118 357,679
Other revenue A 2,399 39 3,534 3405 5933 3,444
Other segment information: E &R
Segment assets NREE 487,675 351,802 287,908 226,713 775583 578,515
Capital expenditure BEARY 7,500 3,591 5026 7,232 12,526 10,823

Do TURNOVER, REVENUE AND GAINS

Turnover represents the value of contracting works
performed; income received and receivable from the
generation and sale of electric and steam power; and
income from a project for the development,

manufacturing and distribution of helicopters.

5. EX¥E - WHEEANE

LERBIVEMATENTIREZE
EBENMREEENRBEENRER
Z B R WO A A B 2R B B
% BUERKHEAKAR ZW
A o
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5.

31 December 2002

TURNOVER, REVENUE AND GAINS (continued)

An analysis of turnover, other revenue and gains is as

follows:

Turnover

Value of contracting works performed

Generation and sale of electric and
steam power

Share of profit from Project EC120 for

the development, manufacturing
and distribution of helicopters

Other revenue

Interest income

Income from installation of structure
for steam supply

Warranted profit from a long term
investment (note 19)

Rental income

Government subsidy

Others

Gains
Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Other revenue and gains

L

BERTENTIRZ
54

HENHEEED

DIEREFE BER
BT AR

EC12027 Y& Fl

H fih 1 38
F2HA

ZRETRIEZ WA

KB ERHKEZRE

wm A (i at19)
WA
AT 2 Bh

Hh

EDE

HE B EEEZNE
iy DN NS e I

H Ao Yo 25 K A E

5.

B

£
AU

—ET-_F+=ZA=+—H

ERE WERANE @&

LIRER - Efb i R AE S T
™~
Group
£5
2002 2001
—BE_F —EE—F
HK$ HK$
ET BT
560,150,189 309,416,546
71,688,267 48,262,396
6,279,545 -
638,118,001 357,678,942
2,611,226 5,296,379
2,554,396 1,743,446
2,000,000 -
1,428,400 1,512,000
655,514 1,450,622
723,923 249,757
9,973,459 10,252,204
74,003 -
- 5,000
10,047,462 10,257,204

CATIC International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002
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31 December 2002 —ETZT -4+ - A=+ —H

ToFER

determined after charging/(crediting):

=

PEMZERATERZERERA A

Cost of contracting works: BHITIEKA:
Cost of contracting works performed E%ﬂﬁ K T2 2 7R
Provision for warranty (note 27) REBE (F1at27)
Provision for inventory obsolescence  [RE& 7 B # (&

Cost of electric and steam power supply & 7] & 2% /5§45 & ik &

Depreciation (note 14) FE (Kati14)
Less: Amounts capitalised to long term J& - B {ERBIFEZZE S L E R
construction contracts Z KA

THREFEERO
=IKAE&

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases on land and
buildings

Less: Amounts capitalised to long term i - BIERHIZE AN E AR

construction contracts &

BEIRA(TEREZME

Staff costs (excluding directors’

6. PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6. re

The Group’s profit/(loss) from operating activities is PN
BR

w=R S (B1E)

ZZ‘« 2, (B518) I
GFA)ATIEBERER :

remuneration (note 8)): (K1aE8) ) :
Wages and salaries IER¥=
Pension contributions RIS HE K

Bt SR UR B 3R
BRRESHRFR

Other operating expenses: H g
Severance payments EBHE

Less: Forfeited contributions

Net pension contributions

Provision for/(write back of) doubtful ~RERE#& ~ (# @)
receivables, net* SRR+
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBRTETEEZEIE
Auditors’ remuneration % B A BN &

Overprovision in prior year

Exchange losses, net

E—FEZBERE

& ERFE

Group
58

2002 2001
—EE_F —ETE—F
HK$ HK$

T BT
515,841,561 267,595,786
4,281,419 1,207,897
120,000 —
520,242,980 268,803,683
59,052,008 37,394,960
579,294,988 306,198,643
12,768,955 10,923,819
(2,204,497) (1,429,355)
10,564,458 9,494,464
2,160,718 1,787,831
(831,949) (438,901)
1,328,769 1,348,930
15,572,513 17,546,561
2,526,499 2,420,144
(292,477) (263,898)
2,234,022 2,156,246
97,264 519,808
(63,622) 9,768,858

- 119

33,642 10,288,785
838,000 818,500
(38,500) -
799,500 818,500
55,668 24,372
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31 December 2002 —ZTZET _F + -4 =+ —H

6.  PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6. RE&RF ~ (F8E) (&) e
(continued) g
* Included in the prior year’s provision for doubtful * F—FRURERZBERRE <§

receivables was RMB7,430,000 (equivalent to AN B D BAR R g5 M & E
HK$6,943,958) made against the amounts due from RSB AR AR ([3EM E
Asia Capital Financial Group Limited (“Asia Capital”), R REMNER KB A _§°
the minority shareholder in Hangzhou Sealand and AIREEXRERAFGERA E’
BEEXHFMRAF, a subsidiary of Asia Capital (see R % 7,430,0007C (#8 & R §
note 34(a)(ii)). Pursuant to the letter of consent from 6,943,9587%77?) 2 BE (R K ;‘f
Asia Capital dated 30 April 2002, the Group set off #£34)(ii) c BIE_ZZT = 5
dividends of Hangzhou Sealand payable to Asia FOA=+HdhARMNerE g
Capital amounting to RMB2,240,310 (equivalent to HZzREE @ AEBEKAT
HK$2,093,748) against the amount due to the Group PN Y B E AF T 25 M & B B9 AR
as partial settlement. Accordingly, provision for B ARM2,240,3107T (9%
doubtful receivables of HK$2,093,748 was written %2,093,7487%77?) C AEE
back in the current year. RAEB & DFRIE - AL -
%2,093,74878 7T 2 FEULER
RREBREEREAFEE
B o
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MBHEX
Group
£H
2002 2001
—2FC-F —ET—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on overdrafts and bank loans ZERAFANZHEEZ
wholly repayable within five years FEXRRITERZHE 2,722,258 2,642,960
Less: Amounts capitalised to long term & - BE{ERHIZEEHNE AR
construction contracts Z KA (888,239) (835,401)
1,834,019 1,807,559
Interest payable on finance leases BMEBN 2 ENSFE - 104,876

1,834,019 1,912,435
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31 December 2002 —ETZT -4+ - A=+ —H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8.

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the

Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Companies

Ordinance is as follows:

Fees:
Executive directors

Non-executive directors

e
HITES
FHITES

Other emoluments (executive directors): H B & (F1TEE) ¢

Basic salaries, housing, other

allowances and benefits in kind

Retirement scheme contributions

Bonuses paid or payable

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within

EAX#HE FhE-Hf
ERE R B S

RRE B R

BB NIEL

the bands set out below is as follows:

Nil — HK$1,000,000

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000

Z % 1,000,000/ 7T

1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7T
2,000,001 7L & 2,500,000/% 7T
2,500,001 7T 2 3,000,0007% 7T
3,500,001 7. &£ 4,000,000/% 7T

EEME

RiFEHRAE AR EIIE 161

FEECEZTHMEOT

Group
£H

2002 2001
— —EF—F
HK$ HK$
B BT
216,000 216,000
360,000 360,000
576,000 576,000
7,510,000 7,039,196
464,280 459,197
1,060,000 470,000
9,610,280 8,544,393

et THBEEZEEARNOT :

Number of directors

EEAH
2002 2001
—g®=F —TT- =%
6 7
1
1 =
1 2
1 —
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

The total remuneration of the independent non-
executive directors for the year amounted to
HK$240,000 (2001: HK$240,000). The directors’
remuneration has not been included in the staff costs
disclosed in note 6 above. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION

The five highest paid individuals included three (2001:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. The remuneration of the other
two (2001: two) non-director, highest paid individuals
is analysed and fell within the bands set out below.

Basic salaries, housing, other

allowances and benefits in kind K E Y =
Retirement scheme contributions RIKESETEIH
Bonuses paid or payable A SR

EEsME (&)

NFEEZBIFNTESHES R
B8 /5240,0008 T (ZFZE—4F -
240,000/ 7T) - EEI & W EET
ALE#M 6T #HEZ B T K
KN FRIEEIRLTHREES
WMEXREREEAME -

TEEEHEEME

IE&ESHFALTERE=2(ZZ
F—H :ZR)EF NEME
ZEBEN EXHIE8 - KR
Z(CET—F  MB)ESFHF
EFATZMEE NIIEEIL S
rany

EXRHGS FR-EMER

CATIC International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002

Group
£

2002 2001
—EBCH —EE—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
2,656,500 2,673,952
138,408 131,838
441,000 170,000
3,235,908 2,975,790

Number of employees

BEEAE
2002 2001
—EEC_F —EE—F
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7 = 1,500,000/ JT 1 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T & 2,000,0005% 7T 1 1




70 | Notes to Financial Statements
TSRS MY 5

“ERFER

PEMZERATERZERERA A

31 December 2002 — T T —_F +=- A =+ —H

10.

TAX 10. ®H 1\

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the

R AN SR B A R A] A 2 B A5 5 18

Group had available tax losses brought forward to offset RUABEAFER FFEERB
the assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the EEZRERTOAAN - E kI &
current and prior years. The tax charge for the current HEBMEHEE - ERBEAM
and prior years represent income tax in the mainland REEN EFFEZRBERIIIR
of the PRC, which is calculated at the applicable tax BAEBBETHEDAD - RERIE
rate based on existing PRC legislations, interpretations PIETE 2 BRABEMFTEZF
and practices in respect thereof. FTig o
The tax charge for the year is represented by: REEZHERXAT :
Group
£
2002 2001
—EECF —EBET—F
HK$ HK$
B BT
Group: £8:
Mainland China B K e 3,007,813 774,468
Hong Kong — underprovision in EE-BEFEREBTR
prior year 66,563 =
Share of tax attributable to an associate 15 B ‘& A 7] £+ 18 = 24,287
Tax charge for the year AEREHRE 3,074,376 798,755

There was no provision for deferred tax in respect of AFEEWBEMELEHIERE (ZEF

the year (2001: Nil). —F |E) o
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10.

11.

12.

31 December 2002

TAX (continued)

The principal components of the Group’s unprovided
deferred tax (asset)/liability arising from tax losses and
cumulative timing differences at the balance sheet date,
calculated at 16% (2001: 16%), are as follows:

Accelerated depreciation allowances — JIZERIT & K &
Revenue deferred for tax purposes 758 T8 R SE WA
Tax losses carried forward A B S

General provision for bad debts BRI
Others H ity

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company is HK$1,483,100 (2001:
HK$76,931,598).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is
based on the net profit attributable to shareholders for
the year of HK$15,321,818 (2001: net loss attributable
to shareholders of HK$69,319,808) and the weighted
average of 3,412,717,301 (2001: 2,965,969,603) shares
in issue during the year.

10.

11.

12.

—ET-_F+=ZA=+—H

BLIE (&)

REER  BHEI16%(ZEE
—F 16%) s TEZAEB KA
HEBERRFTRE 2 RBEHEE
ERIE(BE) BEZEEHBMH
LU N

Group
&5
2002 2001
—EBC-fF —TE—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
560,793 (124,291)
- 8,457,653
(16,299,702) (28,908,386)
(522,240) (254,400)
(1,070,124) (7,447)
(17,331,273) (20,836,871)

BRERESLBEXBER, (&
H) R

RARB I EHREPRIEZRE
EHEHEXEBEBERFHEA
1,483,100 T (Z T ZF —F :
76,931,598/ 7T) °

BREF(BE)

BREARRER, (B18) HIREF
AR R FE(G /& K JF %8 15,321,818
BIL(ZFTE—F 69,319,808
BT REEEBEFRE) F
WNEBEITRG ZINEFH &
3,412,717,301 & (ZF T —F :
2,965,969,6030%) 5+ & -

CATIC International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002



72 | Notes to Financial Statements
IR RE T

—EERCEFH

PEMZERATERZERERA A

31 December 2002 —ETZT -4+ - A=+ —H

12.

13.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the net profit attributable to shareholders for the
year of HK$15,321,818 and the weighted average
number of 3,413,767,370 shares, being the aggregate
of the weighted average number of 3,412,717,301
shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation and the weighted
average of 1,050,069 shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of
outstanding share options in full during the year.

In the prior year, no diluted loss per share has been
presented as the outstanding share options, if fully

exercised, would not have had a dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At beginning of year F 9]

12. BRERN (F#E) (&)

BREERMNDIRBRRFAE
IR F$5815,321,8188 T R F
NEBITRH 2 MEFESH
3,413,767,370/k 5+ & - & 104
EHE TR EERERZA
Z INHEF ¥ 83,412,717,301 0%
NMBEEEMARTECEBREREE
FEETEMEERITRG ZM
15 801,050,069 R & < 4
Mo

R E—FEEETERARITE
ZEBREINSHERERNEER
BEYE BMIEZ)SHRE
BEE o

13. REW=
Group Company
3 A
2002 2002
—2E=F =
HK$ HK$

21,200,000 21,200,000

Transfer from properties held HBEAFEME (MiE20)

for sale (note 20)

3,091,481 -

Deficit on revaluation EHRE (1,400,000) (1,400,000)
At 31 December 2002 RZEEZF+=ZA=+—H 22,891,481 19,800,000

The investment property of the Company was revalued
by Norton Appraisals Limited, a firm of independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$19,800,000 on
an open market and existing use basis as at 31
December 2002 (2001 HK$21,200,000). The deficit of
HK$1,400,000 (2001: HK$1,800,000) arising from the
revaluation was charged to the consolidated profit and

loss account.

BYEXEAERGBEMEHEBRFT
BERARZEAFAMERRERGEE
HARRKREMER _ZTZT_F+=
A=+—H 241 4&19,800,0007% 7T
—TZT—4 21,200,000 7T) c &
&R 1E 1,400,000 L (Z 2 ZT —F -
1,800,000 7T) E B & BmEH
[5/{? o
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13.

31 December 2002 —ZTZET _F + -4 =+ —H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties of the subsidiaries were
revalued by Vigers Hong Kong Ltd., a firm of
independent professionally qualified valuers, at
HK$3,091,481 (2001: HK$3,091,481) on an open
market and existing use basis. The revaluation did not
give rise to any deficit for both the current and prior

years.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating lease arrangements. Further details of
which are included in note 32(a) to the financial
statements. An analysis of the investment properties is
as follows:

Hong Kong, held under a long term lease
The PRC other than Hong Kong, held
under medium term leases

13.

R BRRUBOFHA
B (BB &
RHEORE

REME (&)

B EXE ARG ER B
(BB ER AR ARMERE
EREEEHNBRARICIREY
¥EH(EMEE3,091,4818 T (=
TE—4F :3,091,48187C) ° 3%
HEMWEENAFER EFE
ERIBE °

REMETIRBEZLEHOZT M
TE=F - FBEHRNP B WS
Z32)c WEMEZ W
T

Group Company

% AL

2002 2002
—2T=F —FF=F
HK$ HK$

& &
19,800,000 19,800,000
3,091,481 -
22,891,481 19,800,000
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—RECFEH

B
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h

31 December 2002 — &

14.

FIXED ASSETS

Group
L]

Cost or valuation:

At beginning of year

Additions

Disposals

Surplus on revaluation
(note 30)

Transfer from properties
held for sale (note 20)

Transfer from construction
in progress

At 31 December 2002

E_F#+-A=+—H

Analysis of cost or valuation: [ &3k fEE A1

At cost
At 31 December 2002
valuation

Accumulated depreciation:
At beginning of year
Provided during the year
Disposals
Surplus on revaluation

(note 30)

At 31 December 2002

Net book value:
At 31 December 2002

At 31 December 2001

14. BEEE
Generation
Leasehold plantand  Furniture,
land and  Leasehold  Plant and related fixtures and
Construction  buildings improvements  machinery  structure equipment Motor  Tools and
in progress AL B BE L£ERER KM KE  vehices  moulds Total
HEIR REFR NEEE  LEE  BBLR R#fE RE IAR#E &%
HKS HK$ HKS$ HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
REFHHE:
1 34579 69,638,359 10,370,081 7,114,775 68,400,000 12,920,944 7,923,985 1,368,134 177,770,857
AE 1451,072 94539 1,853,096 3,305226 3,207,623 1,191,965 1,384,879 37,582 12,525,982
teE - - - - (12,7200 (18,454)  (158,560) - (189,734
EfER
(Ri##30) = - = ~ (3,428,405) = = - (3,428,405)
BRAGENE
(KriE20) - 1,723,800 - - - - - - 1,723,800
BRAKEIR
(1,073,502) - - - 1,073,502 - - - -
-3
TZA
=+-H 412,149 71,456,698 12,223,177 10,420,001 69,240,000 14,094,455 9,150,304 1,405,716 188,402,500
RRE 412,149 71,456,698 12,223,177 10,420,001 - 14,094455 9,150,304 1,405,716 119,162,500
R-E3-%
+ZA
=+-H
2fifE = = - - 69,240,000 = = - 69,240,000
412,149 71,456,698 12,223,177 10,420,001 69,240,000 14,094,455 9,150,304 1,405,716 188,402,500
2ENE
1 - 16634398 9,880,639 5,251,762 - 11,235,611 4,504,649 1,341,320 48,848,379
Enfh - 2434625 266,694 1,217,856 6,461,219 903,522 1,448,829 36,210 12,768,955
e - - - - (326)  (18,454)  (157,003) - (175783)
EfHEH
(Fi#£30) - - = ~ (6,460,893) = = - (6,460,893)
-3
TZA
=t+-A - 19,069,023 10,147,333 6,469,618 - 12,120,679 5,796,475 1,377,530 54,980,658
REFE:
R-88-%
T=A
=t+-A 412,149 52,387,675 2,075,844 3,950,383 69,240,000 1,973,776 3,353,829 28,186 133,421,842
R-ZEZ—F
+=A
=1=F 34579 53,003,961 489,442 1,863,013 68,400,000 1,685333 3,419336 26,814 128,922,478
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—ET-_F+=ZA=+—H

14.  FIXED ASSETS (continued) 14. BEEE (&)
Company N
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment Motor
L = vehicles Total
R&HE RE a%
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT E T T
Cost: [R1E:
At beginning of year FH 306,514 780,000 1,086,514
Additions RE 13,200 — 13,200
At 31 December 2002 R-ZB=F
+=-A=+-—-8 319,714 780,000 1,099,714
Accumulated depreciation: ~ZEHTE
At beginning of year FH 179,496 390,000 569,496
Provided during the year FRE®B 38,343 195,000 233,343
At 31 December 2002 R-ZZB-F
+=-BA=+-H 217,839 585,000 802,839
Net book value: AR SE :
At 31 December 2002 R-ZEE_F
+=-B=+-H 101,875 195,000 296,875
At 31 December 2001 R-ZTZT—F
+=-ZA=+—H 127,018 390,000 517,018

An analysis of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings AEEBZHNTHREFONEOT :

is as follows:
At cost, located in: RE LR
Hong Kong, held under a long term lease B -BERPEOFEE

The PRC other than Hong Kong,

held under a medium term lease

R (BRI REBANFE

HKS$
BT

6,000,000

65,456,698

71,456,698

CATIC International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002
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14.

FIXED ASSETS (continued)

At 31 December 2002, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings and generation plant and related
structure with net book values of approximately
HK$5,226,000 (2001: HK$22,850,000) and
HK$34,672,000 (2001: HK$18,500,000), respectively,
were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (see note 24 (i) and (ii)).

At 31 December 2002, the Group’s generation plant
and related structure was revalued at HK$69,240,000
(2001: HK$68,400,000) by Norton Appraisals Limited
on an open market and existing use basis, resulting in
a revaluation surplus of HK$3,032,488 (2001:
revaluation deficit of HK$8,566,040). Out of the
revaluation surplus of HK$3,032,488, HK$2,648,812
was credited to the consolidated profit and loss account
and the remaining amount of HK$383,676 to fixed
assets revaluation reserve (see note 30). In the prior
year, the entire amount of revaluation deficit of
HK$8,566,040 was charged to the consolidated profit
and loss account for that year. Had these generation
plant and related structure been carried at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, their carrying amounts would have been
HK$66,208,000 (2001: HK$68,400,000).

In the prior year, prior to its transfer to other categories
of fixed assets, the carrying amount of construction in
progress included capitalised interest of HK$232,049.
No interest was capitalised in the construction in
progress at the balance sheet date (2001: Nil).

14.

BE&EE (&)

RNR_EE-_F+-_A=+—8H"
AEBEEDFED LD
5,226,0008 L (Z & —4F
22,850,000/ 7T) % 34,672,000
B (ZEZF—F : 18,500,000
BL) 2B THHOL W REFHE
EERERBBEBDEFAE
REEBER —RBITEE(R
Bt &k 24() K (i) ©

RZEE-_F+-_HA=+—8"
AEBzEERERBBEER
TR EBRARRARM
BERREAEEEETENGHE
769,240,000 T (Z T T —
F : 68,400,000 7T) © ALLE
A B A #:3,032,4888 L (= F
T —F : EHFIES,566,040/8
JT) o B Z#43,032,48878 L
#92,648,812/8 T %383,676/5 7T
ENRlst ASREBEmERETEE
EEMHFEE(RHME30 - £F
EREHRKIES,566,0408 TTE
FHEZFESRABREAN
bR o Wiz SAERBERIB@ERE
VARE 2 B AR BR RIE T & RORE
EEEARE  AEREDSESA
66,208,000 T (ZEZT —F :
68,400,00078 7T) °

RE—FEF  REBREHEMER
ZEEEER  ERIEZKRE
B8 HEE RN F E232,049%
Lo REERTERETIRRETERNE
BREERN(ZZEZ—F  £F) -



Notes to Financial Statements | 77

B RS R E M et

15.

31 December 2002 —ZTZET _F + -4 =+ —H

FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT EC120

On 28 May 2002, the Group entered into an income
assignment agreement with CATIC, the Company’s
ultimate holding company. Pursuant to the income
assignment agreement, the Group agreed to acquire
from CATIC of its 80% interest in the net income in
relation to Project EC120 at a purchase consideration
of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$38 million). Project EC120 is a jointly-controlled
operation established in October 1992 by CATIC in
co-operation with Eurocopter S.A. and Singapore
Aerospace Ltd., both independent third parties, to
develop, manufacture and globally distribute the multi-
purpose EC120 helicopters. Pursuant to the income
assignment agreement, the purchase consideration of
RMB40,000,000 was determined based on 80% of the
valuation of CATIC’s net income in relation to Project
EC120 as at 1 May 2002 in the amount of RMB62.5
million less a 20% discount agreed between the Group
and CATIC. The above valuation of RMB62.5 million
was arrived at by Norton Appraisals Limited using
discounted cash flow method.

CATIC’s net income in relation to Project EC120 is
limited to CATIC’s share of income, net of all expenses,
to be derived from its interest in Project EC120 in
relation to (i) sales and production of parts and spares
of helicopters and profits accrued to CATIC from sales
of helicopters globally; (ii) recovery of non-recurring
costs accrued to CATIC; (iii) commission income
accrued to CATIC on the sale of helicopters by CATIC
in the PRC; and (iv) administrative income accrued to
CATIC from the operation of Project EC120. Pursuant
to the income assignment agreement, CATIC warranted
that the amount to be actually received by the Group
for each of the two years ended 31 December 2002
and 2003 will not be less than RMB6,500,000.

15.

MIEBECI20ZHBEE

R_ZEE_FAA-_+/\H =&
SEEAQNRZREER AR R
MR AR ETRAEZ G
Bl AEBREBRARK
40,000,000t (& & KB
38,000,000% 7T) 2 WEE K E -
MAMEAARWEHEEH
EC1207 /F UL A 80%HEZS - TE R
ECI208 —EHR—NMNZ=F+ A
HAMBEAREBYE =&
Eurocopter S.A.} Singapore
Aerospace Ltd.fpX 37 2 F£ [F] 1%
JHE - ZERRIBALIEEAE
e BiE R 2 IREIEHECI208Y
R ZREEE - BEBEWRAE
Zhe WEBEREBEARK
40,000,0007C IR IER —ZEZF —
FRHA-—BYEPMBERARIFIE
BECI202F WA ZHEBEARK
62,500,0007T A3k 48 2N &£ B &
MERAREFRE20%ITERE
Z80%ETE o Lt AR ¥
62,500,0007T Z & 18 J5 B & 2
B HERARFEAITRRE A
PR ARIBIEBECI202 %
WABRRF B AT T5U
ABEHAEBEBECI20F 5 F
FREE W AT EGIH% CRETE
MY ZEWRAEBHAEHES
NMEEEARTEME - KPR
RATEENEERE KA EST
w A G WE 2R AR A
FEET 2 IELE MR ;5 (iii) B
MERARRBEAEEE A2
PR ARIEAERA &
(iv) P AR F 4B A R IE B EC120
BEBEZREAEBIA - BIEZW
AEZERE - PMERRRIRE
AREBREBE-_ZTT_EK-F
E=F+_A=+—HILMEF
EEZFERWE Z 2 BHEMER
A R #6,500,0007C °
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15.

FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT EC120
(continued)

The income assignment agreement was completed on
17 October 2002. As the investment represents a
contractual right to receive cash in the future from
another enterprise, total investment cost of
HK$39,759,462, including the related professional fees
of HK$2,023,613, was capitalised as a non-current
financial asset in the balance sheet and is stated at
cost less impairment losses, if any. Further details of
this acquisition are disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 20 June 2002.

The net income of CATIC in relation to Project EC120
for the year ended 31 December 2002 amounted to
RMB8,242,000 and the Group’s share thereof at 80%
is RMB6,593,522 (equivalent to HK$6,279,545) (note
5) which was received by the Group on 17 March
2003.

15.

MIEHECI20Z I EE
(%)

ZWAEZRZERN ST _F
+A+EHREK - ARZERE
EREBRRS —REOERIESZ
BHEFR  WEKRERBLKX
39,759,462 L (B 5 HA FE ¥
& MH2,023,61387L) ERIEER
K REEBEXRPERIERD
BE WEKANKRREEIE
(B FIER - ZBWEZE—F
HBEER-_ZEZE_FA-1H
ZARNBBEPIEE -

P42 AR FEIE B EC120E 2
—EE_F+_-_A=+—HI#F
EHFWBARARKS,242,000
TL ' 1H80%ETE - AKEBE DG
mEARE6,593,5227C (MER
6,279,545%70) (Fi7E5) » M A
SEER-_ZEZT=F=A++tH
WEIZERE -
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16.

31 December 2002

GOODWILL

The amount of goodwill capitalised as an asset arising
from the acquisition of Hangzhou Sealand less
accumulated amortisation and impairment loss is as
follows:

16.

—ET-_F+=ZA=+—H

e

WEMMNESHMBIEEAMELZ
RER BRI RORERER
LW

Group
%H
HK$
BT
Cost: RE:
At 1 January 2002 and R-—ZEZT_F—H—H
31 December 2002 EZZEE_F+=-_HA=+—H 72,189,560
Accumulated amortisation RIRE S RORE:
and impairment:
At 1 January 2002 RZTT-_F—H—H 26,926,220
Amortisation for the year F N 2,382,281
At 31 December 2002 R-BEZE-_F+=-H=+—H 29,308,501
Net carrying amount: R RE:
At 31 December 2002 R=ZZBZE-_F+=HA=+—8H 42,881,059
At 31 December 2001 RZEE—F+=-A=+—H 45,263,340

The Group initially acquired 31% equity interest in
Hangzhou Sealand in September 2000 and in February
2001, the Group acquired a further 39%, resulting in
goodwill in the aggregate amount of HK$72,189,560.

The value of Hangzhou Sealand as at 31 December
2001 and 2002 was revalued by Norton Appraisals
Limited through the application of discounted cash
flow method. In the prior year, as a result of the adverse
operating environment relating to Hangzhou Sealand,
including the rise in raw material cost and the
reduction of pricing on sales of electricity which
occurred subsequent to the acquisition of the further
39% equity interest in Hangzhou Sealand, an
impairment loss of HK$23 million was charged to the
consolidated profit and loss for the year ended 31
December 2001. There was no further impairment in
the current year.

RZZEZEZFNA  AEBEHKX
E%MMII/EH 31%2 A #E 2=
WRZEE—F = H#$539% -
Eﬁﬁtéiﬂ’\]?ﬁ%%@ﬁén,ma%o
BT °

MmN e s EBEER_EZ—F
;r—EE-_F+_-_A=+—HH
Eﬁ.r%%ﬁﬁ ﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁ

RenEZEHMHE NE—F
€ BREEFM S 39%/% A&
R 18 HIR RN G 2 & &
RIE BREERBKANEEREE
HEBR TR BWEREZE-Z
§—¢+—H*+—E¢¢fz
REBEm RPN RESIE
23,000,000/ T ° F A F\iE —
WERISRIE °
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31 December 2002

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries at the balance sheet date

are as follows:

Name

=L

FEA Holdings Limited

Far East Aluminium
(Asia) Limited

Far East Aluminium
(B.V.1.) Limited

FEA Engineering
Limited

FEA Investments
Limited

Polyson Investment
Limited

China Geographic
Information

Holdings Limited

Nominal value

Place of of issued and

incorporation/ fully paid-up

registration ordinary/

and operations registered

RS BERTRAR

Z2RR EEBERES

B AMEAZEHE

Cayman US$6,000
Islands 6,000 7T

HERS

British Virgin Us$100
Islands 1003 7T

REBRLES

British Virgin US$6,000
Islands 6,000 JT

RBREZES

British Virgin UsS$100
Islands 1003 7T

RBRZES

British Virgin US$1
Islands 1% 7T

REBRLES

British Virgin US$1
Islands 1E7T

RBREZES

British Virgin UsS$2
Islands 2ETT

RBRZES

—ET-_F+=ZA=+—H

17. WEBARER (&)

REFRZMBRARFBNT -

Percentage of
equity

attributable to
the Company
KD A AL
BET DL
Direct Indirect
HiE Bk
100 -
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
100 -
100 -

Principal
activities

E-3 8

Investment
holding
wEERK

Investment
holding
wEZER

Investment
holding
E K

Investment
holding
wEERKR

Investment
holding
wEZER

Investment
holding
wEZER

Dormant
T
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31 December 2002

—ET-F+=ZA=+—H

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

=X

Strong Power

International Limited

REBRABRAA

Willbert Limited

CATIC Helicopter
(H.K.) Limited

CATIC General Aviation
Holdings Limited
(“CATIC GA”)

CATIC Helicopter
Development
(Shenzhen) Limited

R E TR
R ORI BR

YN

Better View Investment
Limited
REREBR A A

Far East Aluminium
Works (Guangzhou)
Company Limited

ERRE TR
(BIM) BRAA

Place of

incorporation/

registration

and operations

AR,
BRR
E 3:F

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin
Islands

RBREZES

British Virgin
Islands

REBRLES

British Virgin
Islands

REBRLES

PRC/Mainland
China

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid-up

ordinary/
registered

EBRITRAR

EERES

AMERAZEHE

HK$2
278 7T

US$1
17T

US$2
2ETT

Us$2
27T

HK$42,000,000
42,000,000/ 7T

B EA

Hong Kong/ HK$2
Mainland China 278 TT

BB/ BA

Hong Kong/ HK$2
Mainland China 28T

BB/ BA

17. WEBARER (&)

Percentage of

equity

attributable to
the Company
RN T HEAE
BET DL
Direct Indirect
BHi# Bk
- 100
- 100
100 -
100 -
- 100
- 100
- 100

Principal
activities

TEEL

Investment
holding
‘EER

Dormant
Ema

Investment
holding
TEZER

Investment
holding
"EER

Investment
holding
HEER

Property
holding
SESRYE S

Property
holding
S ECEYE S
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17.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

=F

Loyal Truth Investment
Limited
MNERKEERAA

Total Real Investment
Limited
FEHREERAF

FEA Technology
Limited

BERTEMEK
BRAA

Far East Aluminium
Works Company
Limited

REEEITRE
BRAF

Place of

Nominal value
of issued and

31 December 2002

—ET-_F+=ZA=+—H

17. WEBARER (&)

Percentage of
equity

incorporation/ fully paid-up attributable to
registration ordinary/ the Company
and operations registered KD E) AL
EfRL EBRTRAR REB DL Principal
Xk EEMBA, Direct Indirect activities
R AMBRAZEE HE MiE FEXK
Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100 Property
Mainland China 287 holding
BE/BR "REME
Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100 Property
Mainland China 287 holding
EE/BR REME
Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of
s 287 transportation
services
1 (0 8 AR 75
Hong Kong HK$200 - 100 Design,
HE 2007 7T manufacture

and installation
of curtain wall,
aluminium
windows and
other related
products
REtEER
TRKBERE-
i & H At
BEHEMD
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31 December 2002

17.

—EERCEFH

g incorporation/ fully paid-up attributable to
E registration ordinary/ the Company
- and operations registered KD E) AL
EMERZ ERTRAR BREBDL Principal
a Name Z2Rk LW A, Direct Indirect activities
£ SR HEMRAZEHE HE ME  ZEEE
Seniford Engineering Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Design,
Limited (formerly BB 2787 manufacture
known as Seniford and installation
Limited) of curtain wall,
ENEIEBRRAA aluminium
(BI85 windows and
EMEBERAA) other related
products
REtBER
RRPBERRE-
fmE R H M
BRE @
Heng Fai International  British Virgin HK$1,000 - 100 Manufacture of
Ltd. Islands/ 1,000/ 7T curtain wall and
Mainland China aluminium
KBRELES/ windows
B A HEREEE &
faE
Netfortune Limited Hong Kong/ HK$500,000 - 100 Installation
NEBR R A Mainland China 500,000/ 7T of curtain wall
58/ BRX and aluminium
windows
ZRWBERRE R
i)
China Aero Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Dormant
International BB 2787 Emex

Group Limited
B A 2= s 1l B R
ZRABR A A

—ET-F+=ZA=+—H

Place of

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Nominal value
of issued and

17.

Percentage of

equity

BB A R s ()



Notes to Financial Statements | 85

B RS R E M et

17.

18.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

=x

Starnet Investment
Limited

Hangzhou Sealand
Electric Power
Company Limited

Place of

incorporation/

registration

and operations

Yo RV

Rk
= 3.1

British Virgin
Islands

KBRS

PRC/Mainland

China
FE B A

(“Hangzhou Sealand”)

RN EHRBERAA
(THRMEH )

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Unlisted shares, at cost 3F £ 15 R{E

Share of net assets

DIHEEFRE

Nominal value

31 December 2002

—ET-_F+=ZA=+—H

17. WEBARER (&)

of issued and

Percentage of
equity

fully paid-up attributable to
ordinary/ the Company
registered DB AL
ERTRAR REBDL Principal
@A, Direct Indirect activities
R A 2 EE = SE3 FEXEK
US$1 100 - Investment
17T holding
REER
RMB50,000,000 = 70 Generation and
AR sale of electric
50,000,0007T and steam
power
KA
18. BERNTER
Group Company
e YN
2002 2001 2002 2001
BB _—_TT-F ZB8-F —TT—F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
# T BT Er BT
- - 5,567,614 -
5,562,085 _ _ _
5,562,085 -~ 5,567,614 -
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31 December 2002 —ETZT -4+ - A=+ —H

e 18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18. BE QTR (H)
Hi,
Il .
@: Particulars of the associate are as follows: BERARFBHET :
Il

Place of Percentage of

incorporation/
registration

equity interest
attributable to

PEMZERATERZERERA A

Business and operations the Group 2002 Principal
Name structure FEMAL —EE_FEKEE activities
=E EBEB BEREE MY GHRAEZEIHL FTEXK
China Nav-Info Corporate PRC/Mainland 20 Manufacture
Co., Ltd. NG| China of location-based
1 P 4 B 3 S FE B A navigation
ERERMARRLRA products and
related services
HEELMZM
= mm R e #
1 B8 AR 15
19. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 19. REIRE
Group
58
2002 2001
—EBC_fF —TE—F
Notes HK$ HK$
&t BT BT
Unlisted, at cost FELEMKRE RE
FEA Design & Engineering N.V. FEA Design &
(“FEA Design”) Engineering N.V.
(“FEA Design”) (i) 100,000 100,000
Pimpernel Resources Limited Pimpernel Resources
(“Pimpernel”) Limited (“Pimpernel”) (ii) 36,414,905 36,414,905
Guaranteed funds and RAEE REHRE
certificates of deposits (iif) 24,624,880 -
Others H 200,000 200,000
61,339,785 36,714,905
Advance to FEA Design # 5% T FEA Design (i) 20,000 20,000
61,359,785 36,734,905
Less: Provision for impairment i R (36,534,905)  (36,534,905)

24,824,880

200,000
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19.

31 December 2002

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

The Group holds a 20% equity interest in FEA Design.
However, the Group’s interest in FEA Design has been
classified under long term investments as, in the
opinion of the directors, the Group does not exercise
any influence over the operation of FEA Design and
has no obligation to continue financing its operation.
Full provision was made against the investment cost

and the advance to FEA Design in the prior year.

During the year ended 31 December 2001, the Group
acquired from an independent third party (the
“Vendor”) a 23.5% equity interest in Pimpernel which
had been classified under long term investments as,
in the opinion of the directors, the Group has not
exercised any influence over the operation of this
company and has no obligation to finance its
operation. Pursuant to the agreement entered into
between the Vendor and the Group, the Vendor has
warranted that the Group’s 23.5% share in the audited
profit after tax of Pimpernel for the period from 1
April 2001 to 31 March 2002 will not be less than
HK$2,000,000 (the “Warranted Profit”).

In the opinion of the directors, the Group would not
be able to recover the investment cost in Pimpernel
in light of the continued difficult operating conditions
of the industry sector in which Pimpernel was
operating. Furthermore, the directors also had doubts
as to whether the Vendor was able to honour the
Warranted Profit. Accordingly, an impairment loss of
HK$36,414,905 was provided and charged to the

consolidated profit and loss account in prior year.

During the year, the Group has received the Warranted
Profit of HK$2,000,000 which has been recorded as
other revenue in the consolidated profit and loss

account (note 5 to the financial statements).

—ET-_F+=ZA=+—H

REBRE (&)

K et

(i)

(ii)

7N & [E #5 B FEA Design 20%
R - A EERE - A
P 7N & B 3 2 $ FEA Design
CEBITEEMNZEN R
EEAERHEEBRMARM
& + B ULFEA DesignZ
BEIARBIRERT - F—
FED#AEEEFEA
DesignZ 12 & Ak 2 K [A] H 12
Wz BREDL 2 BURME -

RBE_ZTZT-—F+_A=
T—BHIEFE  AEER—
UBIZE=%(EH]) KB
Pimpernel Z 23.5%X# » &
Pimpernel 2 R 1T X I %
1 UHARHEBKREM
ME AtEZARZER
EEARBRERET - BE
HESDRAEEBTZZH
®BEIRIJAEEESLZ
ZE-FOA-HBE_ZZ
—HE=ZA=1T—BLLHH
Pimpernel 23.5%#% & Z 1 1&
i Kl %~ & 2 142,000,00078
T (MREBHEN]) ©

EERR -\ Pimpernel AT
EZIEREBRMHER
B AEEA A AKDR
Pimpernel Z &K A » LoM
EENEREIRGRAE
BERBEN - itk © BE
36,414,905/ 7T 2 5 1B &5 18
EREEG TELFEGAE
= AR HIBR o

FR - AEBEEWEZRE
& #12,000,000/8 78 » W E R
RAERER AR EE 4 Uk
= (B RS KT 5E5) ©
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ﬁ 19. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (continued) 19.
H_
I
& (iii) The guaranteed funds and certificates of deposits
|
|I|" amounting to HK$22,624,880 (2001: Nil) have been
o pledged to banks to secure certain banking facilities
g granted to the Group.
&
ﬁﬁ 20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 20.
&
=
Balance at beginning of year FUEF
Additions NE
Transfer to investment BREREME (Wit13)

properties (note 13)

Transfer to fixed assets (note 14) HEBEEEEE (Miti14)

Less: Provision for impairment B E R R

REBRE (&)

iip ® A HE & B F R &
22,624,880 L (Z 2T —
F\m)BEMTRT  MER
AEEERETRITREZ

A -
HEMR
Group
% H
2002 2001
—BB-—F _—TT-—#
HK$ HKS$
& BT

30,645,650 27,554,169
- 3,091,481

(3,091,481) —
(1,723,800) —

25,830,369 30,645,650
(4,341,369) (4,341,369)

At lower of carrying cost or FREEs A 2R FE (BEE)

net realisable value

The properties are stated at the lower of carrying cost
or net realisable value based on their market value as
at the balance sheet date as determined by the
revaluation on an individual property basis, performed
on an open market value basis as at 31 December
2002 by Vigers Hong Kong Ltd.

The properties held for sale as at 31 December 2002
and 2001 were carried at their net realisable values.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, sale and
purchase agreements were entered into for the disposal
of these properties (note 35).

21,489,000 26,304,281

ZEVEREERERERFE
MEFREEAR BEEED
RIBEEE (B BRARINZ
ZE—F+ - A=+—HZRH
MEAEEZERYELEITEM
THEEZZEMEREERZ
MmEFE

R-BE-FR-FE—F+=
A=+—8" #%%%EEW“
I 5 1E §|J s

FE A% EREEZRZIWE
E j%j = Tg%n?k (Bﬁu_li_?)S) °
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21.

2P

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Sub-materials

Less: Provision for obsolescence

31 December 2002

R#
& R A

L ERE

There were no inventories carried at net realisable
value at the balance sheet date (2001: Nil).

AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) CONTRACT 22.

CUSTOMERS

Costs incurred to date on long
term construction contracts
plus attributable profits,
less foreseeable losses

Less: Progress payments received
and receivable

Amount due from contract
customers

Amount due to contract
customers

RREQNESEREL
32 B0 R A MR AT TR R
ZE#R

Bl < B I O B R

AHEPRR

RENEFPHA

—ET-_F+=ZA=+—H

21. ®E

Group

% H
2002 2001
—RE_F —EEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
5,099,960 3,528,997
2,114,989 2,145,938
7,214,949 5,674,935
(1,617,727) (1,497,727)
5,597,222 4,177,208
REEE - WEFE AR ZERF

BIR(ZEZE—F : £) o
BREFRIR (RENEF

M)

Group

=
2002 2001
—EECHE —EE—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
2,391,784,258  1,750,771,558
(2,510,669,587) (1,881,661,244)
(118,885,329)  (130,889,686)
36,882,264 13,646,010
(155,767,593)  (144,535,696)
(118,885,329)  (130,889,686)
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i 23. ACCOUNTS AND RETENTIONS RECEIVABLE 23. EBRERERKRESE
Hi,
I
@: Group
! &
I
< 2002 2001
- —EBEBC-F —EE-F
: HK$ HKS$
ET T
®
FH
Accounts receivable JiE WS BR 3K 161,405,153 88,367,919
# Retentions receivable & W AR E & 94,194,149 72,616,841
255,599,302 160,984,760
Less: Provision for doubtful debts  J& - R BR B 1 (12,970,382)  (13,057,698)
242,628,920 147,927,062
An aged analysis of accounts receivable is as follows: EWERRZBRE DTN
Group
=
2002 2001
—2E-f -ITT—F
HK$ HKS$
B AT
Current Bl ER 127,437,584 71,145,276
31-60 days 31-60H 2,971,826 13,890,191
61-90 days 61-90H 16,108,774 139,800
Over 90 days 90H Mt 14,886,969 3,192,652
161,405,153 88,367,919
Less: Provision for doubtful debts — J5f : 5 B %% &5 (2,502,608) (3,235,924)
158,902,545 85,131,995
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23.

31 December 2002 —ZTZET _F + -4 =+ —H

ACCOUNTS AND RETENTIONS RECEIVABLE
(continued)

Retentions receivable represent certified contract
payments in respect of works performed, for which
payments are withheld by customers for retention
purposes, and are released to the Group pursuant to
the provisions of the relevant contracts after the
completion of the projects in question. No aged
analysis of retentions receivable is presented as the
amount retained is provided on each payment up to a
maximum amount calculated on a prescribed
percentage of the contract sum.

The Group’s accounts receivable mainly represent
progress payments receivable from facade building
contracting works performed by Far East Aluminium
Works Company Limited (“Far East Aluminium”), the
Company’s principal operating subsidiary, which is
generally engaged as a nominated sub-contractor in
respect of property development projects in Hong
Kong. Far East Aluminium adopts credit policies
consistent with the trade practices prevalent in the
Hong Kong building industry. Far East Aluminium
recognises its accounts receivable when the value of
the sub-contract works is certified by the architect.
Pursuant to the trade practices, the main contractor
from time to time makes applications for payment
certificates which include the certified value of the
nominated sub-contract works. Normally within 14
days of the receipt by the main contractor of the
payment from the employer against the payment
certificate from the architect, the main contractor shall
pay to the sub-contractors the certified value of their
sub-contract works, less amounts previously paid and
retentions attributable to the sub-contract works as
explained above.

The normal credit term of accounts receivable from
the sale of electric and water steam power is 30-60
days.

23.

FE W BRIE R AR B & (4)

ERRREZIEAEFPREEER
ZEREHTIREE  XERE
BREAHZHAERBR AR T
PRIRBERTAKHE - ARNRE R
TIRBERXNIRENRTE &
BREZEANEBIEEBRD
b o B 2 SRR E S 2
BREk D AT o

REBEZ BEERREZHEARF
—RIEFER/BENFEFERIAR
EESHBZIENBARIER
MEIRARLAA ([EXRn
B ETREIMNGES TIEZIE
WOE R - RRIME R 2
SERRNEABBRETER
R ERER - BRIBENEE
AiFER D #I T2 2 BER @ #§E
WHRRERAR - IRIBETTEE
Bl BAEEE TRREEDHE
ZIREERNEZRMBEHANT
RNREREZHF - BEER
—RERNRBEEMEAZTE
MRBEHERE T W REK 14X
A A AR E R E A AT
RN HATERAHEE(BHK
FHAH TR 2 &R ER
ZREE) °

HETOREKAZERZEZE
EH—MRAE30E608 -
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31 December 2002 — T T - F + = A = H
e 24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 24. FEBITER
Hi,
I
@: Group
i £m
I
< 2002 2001
E —BB-F _TT—F
5&% HK$ HK$
#E T BT
e
ﬁ
Bank overdrafts, secured RITHE S FHEHE = 13,405
& Import loans, secured iE OExR FEiF 44,342,643 23,546
Bank loans, secured IRITE K HIKHE 26,168,224 29,420,561
70,510,867 29,457,512
Bank overdrafts and import AR —FRNHIREKRFEE
loans repayable within ZIRITBEXRENER
one year or on demand 44,342,643 36,951
Bank loans repayable: AR TIIHRER ZRITER:
Within one year or on demand R —F AR E K 26,168,224 26,336,449
In the second year RE—F = 3,084,112
26,168,224 29,420,561
70,510,867 29,457,512
Portion classified as ERBAGE S
current liabilities (70,510,867) (26,373,400)
Non-current portion e %) = 3,084,112

AEBZRITEETIATIISIA
ERTER

The Group’s banking facilities are secured by:

|HRAREEREFEL
and buildings with a net book value of 5,226,000/ L (& —
approximately HK$5,226,000 (20071: % : 22,850,000 L) Z
HK$22,850,000) (note 14); HETHAOLRESF (K
E14)

(i) pledges of certain of the Group’s leasehold land (i)

KEHEAEERER®TFE
34,672,000 L (Z 2=
— £ : 18,500,000/ 7T )
ZETEESHENBBLE
B (Hati4)

(i) pledges of certain of the Group’s generation (i)
plant and related structure with a net book value
of HK$34,672,000 (2001: HK$18,500,000)
(note 14);
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24.

25.

31 December 2002

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

pledges of certain of the Group’s time deposits
amounting to HK$48,240,000 (2001:

HK$41,500,000);

pledges of certain of the Group’s long term
investments amounting to HK$22,624,880
(2001: Nil) (note 19 (iii));

corporate guarantees amounting to an aggregate
of HK$171,000,000 (2001: HK$171,000,000)
executed by the Company (note 33); and

short term bank loans of RMB15,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$14,019,000)
(2001: Nil) was guaranteed by #i /1B & L H
fR 2 @], an independent third party.

In the prior year, short term bank loans of

HK$2,803,738 as at 31

December 2001 were

guaranteed by a subsidiary of the minority shareholder

of a subsidiary.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

—ET-_F+=ZA=+—H

24. FTERITER (#)

EI,_

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

' #H KX & B B
48,240,0008 T (= EF
— £ : 41,500,000 7T)
ZETEBRER

' H KX & B =
22,624,880 L (=T ZE
—F |) 2 RKRE (K
A 19(iii)

X A A B A & H
171,000,000 T (= ZEF
—4F : 171,000,000 7T )
ZRAlER (BEE33) &

REBRTERARE
15,000,0007T (49 F R
14,019,000 7T) (Z 2=
—F BABABULE=F
MMNEBEENLBR A E R
HAER -

+FEE RZBEE—F+_-_A=
+—H A&%02,803,738B L2 5E

HYGR 7

TERTHR—RRBARZ

D ERE S BOR 2 I B A R FEAR o

25. BRERBEEE

Group Company
3 YN

2002 2001 2002 2001
—BF-F —_TT—F ZBF-F _—_TE—F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
T AT BT BT
Cash and bank balances I & & #R17 & 157 9,070,135 26,708,332 644,260 586,343
Short term deposits yRGREEN 128,643,182 116,426,814 92,252,034 52,879,683
137,713,317 143,135,146 92,896,294 53,466,026

CATIC International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002
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25.

26.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

At the balance sheet date, cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$12,048,450 (2001: HK$6,642,693).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE

An aged analysis of accounts and bills payable is as

follows:

Current BV ER
31-60 days 31-60H
61-90 days 61-90H
Over 90 days 90H M

25.

26.

RERBSEEE)

REEER - XEEUAREITE
ZIRe RIRITHERRE12,048,450
BIL(ZEZE—F : 6,642,6938
) ARSI ERERAHE
L EH - AMBREFE A2 5
P B IRAR 0 R 4508 - SERE
BT  ANEEAFAERE
EITINER M2 BRITHARE R
BMEHME -

B RS R ER

JERTBR R R BIR 2 BREC 2 AT 1A
™

Group

£
2002 2001
—22-F —EEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
33,520,196 19,622,647
2,959,919 3,801,918
2,143,979 2,004,093
890,149 991,644
39,514,243 26,420,302
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27.

31 December 2002 —ZTZET _F + -4 =+ —H

WARRANTY PROVISION 27.
At beginning of year FH)
Provision for the year REERE

Amount utilised during the year FRABAZEHE
At 31 December 2002 R=-BF-F+-A=+-—

Portion classified as AERBEEISD
current liabilities

Long term portion REE D

The Group provides warranties to its customers on
facade building contracting works in accordance with
terms and conditions as stipulated in contracts, under
which defective works are rectified or replaced. The
amount of warranty provision is estimated based on
the past experience of the level of defective works
and the estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing
basis and revised where appropriate.

RERE

Group
£m
HK$
&

6,607,517
4,281,419
(1,105,863)

=] 9,783,073

(9,783,073)

REEIZ A KR TE Z R
SR B IME S & T2 A H 2 P4
HRE - Bt - AREZTRER
TEEXER RIEBBG LR
TEBETARIREZER TN
far o et 2 EETRIFERE
T At et RN E E B ERER] -
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31 December 2002

28. SHARE CAPITAL

—EERCEFH

Authorised:
6,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each

PEMZERATERZERERA A

Issued and fully paid:
3,675,731,000
(2001: 3,075,731,000)
shares of HK$0.10 each

28.

s
6,000,000,000%

FRMEEO.108 T Z k)

BBEITRHR:
3,675,731,0000%

BREE.10E T Z KRG

—ET
3,075,731,000/%)

During the years, the following movements in the

issued share capital of the company were recorded:

(@) On 4 January 20071,

508,616,000 shares of

HK$0.10 each were issued to a fellow subsidiary

of the Company as partial consideration for the

acquisition of a further 39% equity interest in

Hangzhou Sealand, as further detailed in notes

16 and 34(f) to the financial statements.

(b)  On 20 March 2001 and 10 April 2001,
200,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in total

were issued to an independent third party as

the consideration for the acquisition of a long

term investment, as further detailed in note 19(ii)

to the financial statements.

% 28
Company
A
2002 2001
—¥¥—F _—_TT—F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
600,000,000 600,000,000
367,573,100 307,573,100
FARRREEITRAEE L8

W

(@)

R_ZEE—F—HWMA -
NN A ¥47508,616,000
% F R E(E0.1058 7T 2 i%
DT ARRR—FER RN B
NA] ERIEEE N G B
39%AR#E 2 B KRB - 5F
BRI B mEWNT16 K%
34(f) °

RZZEE—F=A=-+H
rF=ZZEZE—FUAH+H -
P /NI ] = - S G

200,000,0000% & i% H &
0.10BIL 2RO T — &L

=7 ERNEB-EER
HREZRE - FBEHERN
B 75 3 & BT 5E 19G) ©
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31 December 2002

28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(c)

The subscription rights attaching to options in
respect of 21,348,000 shares were exercised at
the exercise price of HK$0.17 per share,
resulting in the issue of 21,348,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each for a total cash proceeds, before
expenses, of HK$3,629,160.

On 31 May 2002, Tacko International Limited
(“Tacko”), the controlling shareholder of the
Company, placed its 600,000,000 shares in the
Company to independent investors at a price of
HK$0.16 per share. On 10 June 2002, Tacko
subscribed for and was allotted 600,000,000
new shares in the Company at the same price
of HK$0.16 per share. The net proceeds of
HK$93 million from the placing and top-up
subscription of 600,000,000 shares was raised
for the purpose of providing the necessary
funding for the acquisition of (i) 80% interest
in the net income in relation to Project EC120
accrued to CATIC (notes 15 and 34(b)); (ii)
capital contribution into China Nav-Info (notes
18 and 34(d)); (iii) capital injection into CATIC
Siwei Co., Ltd. (“CATIC Siwei”) (note 34(c)); and
(iv) capital contribution into an equity joint
venture engaged in the provision of aircraft
leasing and related services in the PRC (note
34(e)). As at 31 December 2002, HK$39.8
million and HK$5.6 million were utilised to
finance the investments in (i) and (ii) above,
respectively. Subsequent to the balance sheet
date, on 17 January 2003, HK$25.1 million was
also utilised to fund the capital injection in
respect of the investment in (iii) above. Since
the agreement referred to in (iv) above to set
up the equity joint venture to be engaged in
the provision of aircraft leasing and related
services in the PRC was terminated, the
remaining balance was used to provide general
working capital for the Group.

—ET-_F+=ZA=+—H

28. KA (&)

(c)

Bl EMK AT RE
21,348,000/ % 1n < R &
BERERITHEE0.17E
JC 1T f# FORE S
21,348,000% & i% m &
0.108 T2 & + Mk
YRS RE&ERER
3,629,160/%5 JT °

R-ZZEE_FHRA=+—
H: A2RZ2EBERRE
Tacko International Limited
([Tacko)) A®RZ0.16/ 8T 2
B A& E600,000,000/% 2
NG TEBILKREE - R
T A +AH
TackoAFBEME & &= [Z0.1675
JT 53 I & it 2£600,000,000
[ AN B FTA% o SEREE KR &
8 600,000,0000% 0% 17 £ &
¥ %893,000,000/8 7T © B Uk
BOFMEE QR ENIEAR
EC120F Y2 A 80%7E =5 (Fff 5%
15%34(b)) & (i) 4k 5 /U 4
SEE (M sE18%34(d) & (iii)
APOEMEEREGR DA
([H#EER])EE (M
34(c)) : R(vAREFBRKEE
IREREAE REERE 2
EERKERLETE (M
34e) IRIEFBZ2ES o R
—EEF+=ZA=+—
H + 39,800,000/% T &
5,600,000 L2 2 A AR A
() R(iVEEHEBREE
o HEHRHE RNZZEZT=
F—H++tH - 25,100,000
B ITINE AR BL_E i (i) i&E
HEZEE - AR EX(iv)FTR
iz S AE R Bl IR A E 1R
HREAEREBERSE &
BERELERZE KL
BRTSHEERERAEE 2 —
BEEES o
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o 28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 28. KA (&)

H_

I

. A summary of the transactions during the year with EBLAARTEBHITRAES)
! reference to the above movements in the Company’s ZERNETZRGBEMT -

issued share capital is as follows:

T i 22 B AT B BRI R AR A A

Number of Issued Share premium
shares in issue  share capital account Total
Notes E#1T E&#1T
ki3 Rt &E Bx  ROEER CE
. HKS HKS HKS
Er Er V-
At 1 January 2001 RZZE-F—-HF—H 2,345,767,000 234,576,700 217,203,159 451,779,859
Shares issued for the SLIEB M EHE39%
acquisition of a further BRB12KRA
39% equity interest in
Hangzhou Sealand (a) 508,616,000 50,861,600 15,258,480 66,120,080
Shares issued for the FpUE—IE
acquisition of a long REREENT
term investment ZR 5 (b) 200,000,000 20,000,000 6,000,000 26,000,000
Shares issued upon exercise & R EET
of share options 172k (c) 21,348,000 2,134,800 1,494,360 3,629,160
At 31 December 2001 RZZT-%
and 1 January 2002 +-B=+-8Bk
ZZT-4-H-H 3,075,731,000 307,573,100 239,955,999 547,529,099
Shares issued to the mEER
controlling shareholder B2k (d) 600,000,000 60,000,000 36,000,000 96,000,000
Placing expenses HEER - - (2,771,836) (2,771,836)
At 31 December 2002 RZZE_F
+-ZA=+—-H 3,675,731,000 367,573,100 273,184,163 040,757,263




Notes to Financial Statements | 99

B RS R E M et

29.

31 December 2002 —ZTZET _F + -4 =+ —H

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

SSAP 34 was adopted during the year, as explained in
note 2 and under the heading “Employee benefits” in
note 3 to the financial statements. As a result, the
following detailed disclosures relating to the Company’s
share option schemes are now included in the notes
to the financial statements. In the prior year, these
disclosures, as required by the Listing Rules, were
included in the Report of the Directors.

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Eligible participants of the share
option schemes include any employee or executive
directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. At
the Special General Meeting of the Company held on
20 November 1991, a share option scheme (the “1991
Share Option Scheme”) was adopted. The 1991 Share
Option Scheme was subsequently terminated on 14
May 2001 upon the adoption of the existing share
option scheme (the “Existing Share Option Scheme”).

The Existing Share Option Scheme became effective
on 14 May 2001 and has a remaining life of
approximately 8 years until 13 May 2011. Pursuant to
the Existing Share Option Scheme, the maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted (together with shares issued pursuant to options
exercised and shares in respect of which any option
remains outstanding) and any other share option
schemes (excluding the 1991 Share Option Scheme)
of the Company is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The
maximum number of shares issuable to each eligible
participant under the Existing Share Option Scheme is
limited to 25% of the aggregate number of shares at
the time of proposed grant of that option.

29.

BREE

FAERMS A EBLERFE34
5 HBEERMBREME2R
IE3MERERA ] — B o Bt -
A NB AR BBRE S 2
BERBELRLE BNV B HREN
dAR e EFE  RFRBEFRE
BETRMZAENERESS
HER -

RAERE —BERETE B
TRt By M SRB T AR B 2 K Ih &
EEHER A ERSEE - B
RiEETE 2 A BR2HEERIER
N R EERKB AR Z ERE
BHITES - EARAR—N
h—E+—A=-+H8T2KRE
BRI RS F O RM—IBRE R ERT
2l (199185 Ax#FTEl]) ° 1991
BRErEERE—_TT—FA
A+HBEREEEREE ([
BRERERTE]) BN IE -

REEREFEN - —FH
ATHEBAEY  FHFHLORS
F - oE2_ZT——FHAA+=H
1E - RIBEREERERTE - AIX
2 BRERT SR GERRE
B EEITEmMEIT 2 IRMD RE
A RETEBREMPRG) &
AKRAaHMERERERE (T
BIE1991 AR ERT8)) TP K
MNEE ZZ T EHBBARRTE
BEITRM 210% - RIERFE
BEFEINE—REEK2EE
AT RN RS EE R
HZEERECRROBESE 2
25%&BR ©
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29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The offer of share option may be accepted with the
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the
grantee. Share options must be held for a minimum of
six months before they can be exercised The exercise
price of the share options is determined by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) a
price of not less than 80% of the average closing price
of the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (ii) the nominal value of one share.

Subsequent to the adoption of the Existing Share
Option Scheme, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) has introduced a
number of amendments to Listing Rules on share option
schemes. These new rules came into effect on 1
September 2001. No share options have been granted
under the New Share Option Scheme since its adoption
on 14 May 2001 up to 31 December 2002. However,
any option to be granted under the Existing Share
Option Scheme shall be subject to the new rules which
include, inter alia, the following:

(@)  the maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting;

(b) share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by independent non-executive
directors; and

(c) the exercise price of share options is determined
by directors, but may not be less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the shares on the date
of grant of the share options; and (ii) the average
closing price of the shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the
grant.

29.

BRESE (&)

EBEANUINRBAKREIET
BEnERE  BRERLERE
NEAFAITE o BREZITE
ERESET  HTEBATY
MEBZREEHMEREEZEER T
AHATAERZH 2 FHUmE
80%ME (i) —RARMD < E
g -

RERAIRE BT EIR - BA
BMEXZMBER AR ([BRF])
gL LR R A AR AR T 8l 2 AR
ESIAZHER - 2FHARAA
—EE-FAA-BEEM -8
—EE-FhA+THRFERE
RN EE T+
A=1t—H1t ¥EBEERLE
Pt o MEERARIRIRA BB A iRt
R 2 EABREAR A H
BME  HPFBEAUATAR

(@ WEA+=EAEEEE
BTEEEWRSHECE
ferE s A EITIRME B &
LA EBBREMNRKRED
BIRM 21% - &%
T B 1t PR B 2 H At B AR
EEYALKRERNRRERS
FHEE

by RTEF -  THAEHKE
ZRR KW FEMBEA
TZREREASENEE
MIFRTTESHE

() BREZTEERESFE
T EABERNATNRIA
Bm®E ()RR LR E
=B 2 W E  Ki)
REER BB B HIA
FER 5 B in < F1HIK
miE -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 29. BRERTE (&) =
Notwithstanding the termination of the 1991 Share #1999 BREASIEN T f:
Option Scheme on 14 May 2001, share options granted —FRATHEBERIE - ERZ g
prior to its termination remain valid and exercisable TEIRIERIE R 2 BARAE K4 i
according to its terms. The following share options BEM - WAIRBEEERITRE - £
granted prior to the termination of the 1991 Share PR1991 B IRERT IR LR E & ?
Option Scheme were outstanding during the year: oz S BE AR AR N R R AT E’
£ -
Option S
period of <

share options

outstanding at

Number of shares in respect of options 31 December

BRERSROBE Date of  Exercise 2002***

At  Exercised Lapsed At grant of price R-FEE_F

Name or category 1 January during during 31 December share  of share T=A=+—H

of participant 2002  the year the year 2002 options*  options** i K 4T B8

R-BB=F FR R R-2T-F BRE  BRE ZBRE

SRELEERER —A—H BT X% tZA=t+t-B RHAH ZTHEE~ AT B e
HK$
E

Directors =%

Yang Chunshu #%%&& 8,160,000 = = 8,160,000 28/1/2000 0.17 28/7/2000
to 27/7/2005
YuLi FA 5,400,000 = = 5,400,000 28/1/2000 0.17 28/7/2000

to 27/7/2005

13,560,000 - - 13,560,000

Other employees 912,000 = = 912,000  28/1/2000 0.17 28/7/2000
Hitgg to 27/7/2005

14,472,000 - - 14,472,000
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29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

No theoretical value of share options is disclosed as
no share options were granted during the year.

* Share options must be held for a minimum of six
months before they can be exercised.

i The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

Lt Option period shall not exceed a period of 5 years
commercing on the expiry of a period of not less
than 6 months after the date option is accepted.

No share options were exercised or lapsed during the
year.

As at the balance sheet date, the exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
14,472,000 additional shares of HK$0.10 each which
would represent approximately 0.39% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at the balance sheet date,
for a total cash proceeds, before expenses, of
HK$2,460,240. Share options do not confer rights on
the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’
meetings.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 25 February
2003, the Company granted under the Existing Share
Option Scheme options in respect of 150,000,000
shares with option period from 25 August 2003 to 24
August 2008 and at an exercise price of HK$0.13 per
share, of which options in respect of 120,000,000
shares were granted to the executive directors of the
Company and options in respect of 30,000,000 shares
were granted to other employees. The above options
in respect of 150,000,000 shares under the Existing
Share Option Scheme were granted in accordance with
the terms of the Existing Share Option Scheme in
addition to the requirements of the amended Listing
Rules on share option schemes. The exercise price of
HK$0.13 per share was determined based on the higher
of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
on 25 February 2003, being the date on which the
options were granted; and (ii) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company for the five trading days
immediately preceding 25 February 2003. Furthermore,
the options in respect of the 120,000,000 shares
granted to the executive directors of the Company were
approved by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company.

The Company proposes that the Existing Share Option
Scheme be terminated and a new share option scheme
in compliance with the amended Listing Rules on share
option schemes be adopted at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 13 May 2003.
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provision of SSAP 30 which permits negative goodwill
in respect of acquisitions which occurred prior to 1
January 2001 to remain credited to capital reserve.
The amount of negative goodwill remaining credited
in capital reserve is HK$162,134 as at 1 January and
31 December 2002.

*x The balance represents the Group’s share of the
statutory reserve fund of a subsidiary operating as a
Foreign Investment Enterprise in the PRC. The reserve

fund is non-distributable in nature.

* %

30. RESERVES 30. f## g
Group % E%
Share Fixed assets E
premium revaluation %
account Capital reserve Reserve Accumulated E
& % reserve* EEEE fund** losses Total P
BEE ERRf  ERREE e~ ZEESB &t £
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ 2
At 1 January 2001 RZEE-F-H—-H 217,203,159 162,134 - 706,937 (188,576,492) 29,495,738 é
Issue of shares BB 22,752,840 - - - - 22,752,840 f,
Net loss for the year AEEEHRER - - (69,319,808) (69,319,808 =
Transfer to reserve fund EETEES - - 651,532 (651,532) -
At 31 December 2001 RZZE-§
and 1 January 2002 + H T=F
“TT-F-f-H 239,955,999 162,134 - 1,358,469 (258,547,832) (17,071,230)
Issue of shares B 28 36,000,000 - - - - 36,000,000
Placing expenses FEER 28 (2,771,836) = = = - (2,771,836)
Net profit for the year AEERNER - - - - 15321818 15,321,818
Transfer to reserve fund ERETEES - - - 823,392 (823,392) -
Surplus on revaluation ERBH - - 383,676 383,676
At 31 December 2002 R=228=%
+=A=t-H 273,184,163 162,134 383,676 2,181,861 (244,049,406) 31,862,428
Reserves retained by: FiRB
Company and subsidiaries KRR RKBR 273,184,163 162,134 383,676 2,181,861 (244,043,877) 31,867,957
Associate BERT - (5,529) (5,529)
31 December 2002 R=22=%
+-B=+-8 273,184,163 162,134 383,676 2,181,861 (244,049,406) 31,862,428
Company and subsidiaries AR A RKMBAR 239,955,999 162,134 - 1,358,469 (258,547,832) (17,071,230)
31 December 2001 RZZE-F
+-A=1+—H 239,955,999 162,134 - 1,358,469 (258,547,832) (17,071,230
& In the prior year, the Group adopted the transitional * REFE  AEEERNSET

B 52 B 253057 2 8 E 1HE 5
X BHHER T —F—
H B DARTEE A 2 BB AT EE A
ZERHBEETANENGEE
Feop—ZEE—F—H—HK
+ZA=+—HAFAER
BERZ2EBESER
162,1348 T °

BHREASERGEERNTHE
SN EREFTALEZ —K
M8 R R A TE M o %
wE A DI °
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30.

—ET-F+=ZA=+—H

RESERVES (CONTINUED) (continued)

Company

Share premium

30.

Contributed

e (&)
DT

Accumulated

account surplus losses Total
BB RER BABH REER Ch
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Wt &t B B B B
At 1 January 2001 R_ZT-F
—-RA—H 217,203,159 15,652,000  (205,178,165) 27,676,994
Issue of shares BIRH 22,752,840 - - 22,752,840
Net loss for the year AEEEREE - (76,931,598)  (76,931,598)
At 31 December 2001 and RZTE—F
1 January 2002 +=ZA=+—-H
R-BE_F
—R—H 239,955,999 15,652,000  (282,109,763)  (26,501,764)
Issue of shares g3l 28 36,000,000 - - 36,000,000
Share issue expenses Rkih%TER 28 (2,771,836) = = (2,771,836)
Net loss for the year AEEERRE - (1,483,100) (1,483,100)
At 31 December 2002 R-ZBE=F
+=ZR=+-8 273,184,163 15,652,000  (283,592,863) 5,243,300

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the consolidated net asset value
of Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.) Limited on 20 November
1991 when its entire issued share capital was acquired
by the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation,
and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares
issued in consideration for such acquisition. Under
the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company is distributable
to shareholders under certain circumstances. The
Company’s share premium account of HK$273,184,163
as at 31 December 2002 may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

KRR ZBARBBRERRAIIRE
SEEATHER—NANL—FT—
H =+ H & AFar East Aluminium
(B.V.L) Limited® &B 2 1T AR AR
BF ° Far East Aluminium (B.V.1.)
LimitedZ 1 & & E /FEHELRQ A
ERWEBREMBITZRNEE
MEZEZRE - BEARE—NN

—FREDEERIA) - ARAEZ
BABBEST ’| N A R
FTEBR - ARRR_TZT_F

T=A=E4= EZHXTJJ&MTEE
273,184,163 7T ] DA 55 & 41 i%
ZARDIK °
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

@)

(b)

Changes to the layout of the consolidated cash
flow statement

SSAP 15 (Revised) was adopted during the
current year, as detailed in note 2 to the
financial statements, which has resulted in a
change to the layout of the consolidated cash
flow statement. The consolidated cash flow
statement is now presented under three
headings: cash flows from operating activities,
investing activities and financing activities.
Previously five headings were used, comprising
the three headings listed above, together with
cash flows from returns on investments and
servicing of finance and from taxes paid. The
significant reclassifications resulting from the
change in presentation are that taxes and interest
paid are now included in cash flows from
operating activities, and interest received and
dividends paid are now included in cash flows
from investing activities. The presentation of the
2001 comparative cash flow statement has been
changed to accord with the new layout.

Also, the definition of “cash equivalents” has
been revised from that under the previous SSAP
15, as explained under the heading “Cash and
cash equivalents” in note 3 to the financial
statements. This has resulted in trust receipt
loans no longer qualifying as cash equivalents.
This has had no effect on amounts previously
reported in prior year’s financial statements.

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group capitalised
depreciation charges amounting to
HK$2,204,497 (2001: HK$1,429,355) (note 6)
and interest expense of HK$888,239 (2001:
HK$835,401) in
contracts (note 7).

long term construction

—ET-_F+=ZA=+—H

3. MEBERERHHE

(a)

(b)

RERERNERZKAE

&

SHEBENE155 (K
BE]) RAF R RN (FF
BERMBHmENRT2) - B
BYREEHEESRER K
NBEEEY - LRERER
ERABSZHER : L
EEE  RETHRHME
EEZIREME © LAITHK
RAIE  BiFLil=11 "
HEREFEELHRAMEE A
RENBEZRERE -
ERAINEBEMSIBZE
AREFPBERBHRIE R
ERFENALEER 2
ReRE - MEWF B R
EMRERIAKREEH
ZEERE - 2N Z
2001 F LIRS REBRE

BEEHAMSBER -
B5h AR IR BT WA B

3[RekREEE] —B&
Frfeie » BESHAERE
Al N B[ e kIR
TEEICERLE L
Ba] - At - ErEREE
RKTIBIABRERAEE
B> BREEFIHEARN L
—FEVBERENZEYZ

TRITELE -
EXFBREXRS

FR - AEEBITERS
2,204,497 T (ZEE —
11,429,355 70) (Kt
it6) & B 888,239
B (ZEZE — F
835,401 70) A KEZE
EEHNKAK (HeE7) °

CATIC International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

Major non-cash transactions (continued)

During the year, the Group set off dividends of
Hangzhou Sealand payable to Asia Capital
amounting to HK$2,093,748 (2001: Nil) against
the amount due to the Group as partial
settlement (note 6).

In the prior year, the Group accepted two
properties from a customer as settlement of
accounts receivable of HK$3,091,481. The two
properties were classified as properties held for
sale (note 20).

In the prior year, 508,616,000 shares at an issue
price of HK$0.13 per share were issued to a
fellow subsidiary of the Company as partial
consideration for the acquisition of a further
39% equity interest in Hangzhou Sealand, as
further detailed in notes 16, 31(d) and 34(f) to

the financial statements.

In the prior year, 200,000,000 shares at an issue
price of HK$0.13 per share were issued to an
independent third party as the consideration for
the acquisition of a long term investment, as
further detailed in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Restricted cash and cash equivalent balances

Certain of the Group’s time deposits are pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group, as further explained in note 24.

Certain of the Group’s cash and cash equivalent
balances are not freely convertible into Hong
Kong dollars.

31.

RERERERWE (@)

(b)

(c)

EXFRERSG (£)

FA - AEEKOTING
HEMTEMNERMZRE
2,093,748 BT (ZFE —
F|) UEBRAE
= 2B B (A7 aE6) °

TEE AEEEARER
MIEY S 1EREZEERER
183,091,481 7T ° %M IA
MEBINBFEWME (M
7£20) o

EEE  BRARE R
B R K B & 7 17
508,616,0000% & % 2 17
BO0. 138 TIERE—TI
BTN V5 B 39% A% AN A 2
ZEMRE - E—FFE
HRBmEWT16
31(d) K 34(f) °

EFEE BRABIFE=H
%% 77200,000,000% & I
BITE0.13 B TiEAWEE
—IERAKEZRE  #
—HHBERN Y BHREM
19

ERFAERREEES
4

AEBZAETEHERE
KR FIRIT - NEREAE
EERZEITEE (E—
WHRTE R FE24) ©

AEBZzETRELRAS
FEGHR T AHALEK
BT °
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 31. HERETRERME (&) g
STATEMENT (continued) g
(d)  Acquisition of a subsidiary (d) Ui B 8 2 H] g
2002 2001 %
—BB-F -—TTF 3
HK$ HK$ z
BT BT s
Net assets acquired: BERBEEFE: S
Fixed assets B E B E - 120,250,757 z
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTEH = 1,854,522
Accounts receivables & W BR 18 = 6,286,651
Prepayments, deposits and ~ TEfTXIE & &
other receivables T H fib e U BR 18 = 7,937,054
Inventories A - 2,609,149
Accounts payable J& 1< BR 18 - (645,538)
Other payables and H fth F& R IR
accrued liabilities REFTRE - (10,109,842)
Tax payable J& < B8 1R = (152,743)
Interest-bearing bank and STRRITERK
other borrowings REMER = (29,420,561)
Minority interests DB R ER - (29,097,799)
- 69,511,650
Goodwill on acquisition WHER 2 2 = 35,478,137
- 104,989,787
Satisfied by: XA
Cash R - 14,999,920
Shares issued B BTARMD - 56,120,080
Purchase consideration WEERE = 71,120,000
Transfer from interest in LN b
an associate to interests = NGIE: £
in subsidiaries = 31,367,231
Legal and professional fees ERERZEXEHR
and related expenses NFrEE 2z BEAX
incurred - 2,502,556

104,989,787
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (continued)

(d)

—ET-F+=ZA=+—H

Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash

equivalents in respect of the acquisition of a

subsidiary in the prior year was as follows:

Cash consideration

Cash and bank balances
acquired

Legal and professional
fees and related
expenses incurred

Net outflow of cash and
cash equivalents in respect
of the acquisition of
a subsidiary

In the prior year, the Group acquired a further

BeHRE

BBz RE

N ER1T HE BR

METEEZ
BRRX

R R

EREREREM

BREWEKB AR
ZHREREAEEE

39% equity interest in Hangzhou Sealand which
became a subsidiary of the Company thereafter,
as detailed in note 16 to the financial

statements. The purchase consideration of
HK$81,120,000 was satisfied by a cash payment

of HK$14,999,920 together with the issue and

allotment of 508,616,000 new shares in the
Company. By reference to the prevailing market
prices of the Company’s shares on the date of
completion, the above new shares issued were

valued at HK$0.11 per share, resulting in an

adjustment of the cost of acquisition (including
professional fees and related expenses of
HK$73,622,556
accordance with the requirements under SSAP

HK$2,502,556) to

in

30. Since acquisition by the Group, Hangzhou

Sealand contributed HK$48,262,396 to the
Group’s turnover and HK$36,217,000 to the
consolidated loss after tax and before minority

interests for the year ended 31 December 2001.

3. HEBERERWE (&)

(d)

WK B AR (&)

LR BRENE AR
ZBEERSSEALE
BEOMTWT :

2002 2001
—EECF —FET—F
HK$ HKS$

T BT

= (14,999,920)

= 1,854,522

= (2,502,556)

- (15,647,954)

EEE AEBEE—TW
BE LN B 2 39% A% AN 4
& ZARRAmMK AR
RIZHMB AR FBEHR
FEREMNE16 - WER
881,120,000 L AR &
14,999,920/ 7T & 317 &
At 2£508,616,000A% & A
RIFTR 2 AT - B2
ERRNBBROHRTEKE K
ZERME - EAiEBETH
REBENDIZSRITE T
Er BRKEBNRA (B
HEEXEBRELABRAX
2,502,556/8 0) iR IBE & 5t
EFERFEI05 2R E
K 573,622,5568 70 © B
M AREBEWEREZ - TN
BHEAERHEE_ZZ
—FE+-_A=+—H8It%F
SR XBEZER B
48,262,396/5 0 2 & ¥ 58
36,217,000/ 7t 2 &1 1%
BRET A SR 3R 4 2= Al /&S

18 e
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 31. HREHRETRERMT (&) g
STATEMENT (continued) £
(e)  Disposal of subsidiaries (e) HEMHBLTA E

g
2002 2001 %
—EBEBC-F —EE-F %
HK$ HKS$ E
ET BT =
Net assets disposed of: EHEZEEFE: E
Other payables and H & 5 BR 5K e
accrued liabilities LEGTEE - (5,000) =
S
- (5,000)
Gain on disposal of & B A A
subsidiaries Z W= = 5,000
32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 32. REFHVZTH
(@  As lessor (@) HEREHEA
The Group and the Company leases its K& B K 7N 7] 4R 15 18 8
investment properties to third parties under EEA—FEEME 2 &K&E
operating lease arrangements, with leases HMOZTHELHEREMET
negotiated for terms ranging from one to two E=7 o
years.
At 31 December 2002, the Group and the R-_EE_EFE+-_A=+
Company had total future minimum lease —H ' XEEEKARIR
receivables under non-cancellable operating EHBEPEISNFATE
leases with its tenants falling due as follows: HAREA 7 Al s & & 7
HWZERERORERK
HeBEBEHWT :
Group Company
=] AT
2002 2001 2002 2001
—BE-_F —ET-HF BB —TE—F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Er BT BT BT
Within one year »—% A 1,039,714 1,260,000 842,000 1,260,000
In the second to — & A F
fifth years, (BEBE
inclusive EmME) 197,714 = = -
1,237,428 1,260,000 842,000 1,260,000
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32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

32. REMNZTH (B

(b)  As lessee (b) HEBEHEA

The Group and the Company entered into non- AREBERANAREEEE
cancellable operating lease arrangements with YAAHELEROL
landlords, with the terms of the leases ranging B EEN T — iﬂiz

from one to five years. fal o
At 31 December 2002, the Group and the RZZEE-_F+-_A=+
Company had total future minimum lease — B BEBENFUATEH
payments under non-cancellable operating Bz AARELE N
leases falling due as follows: 82 AEBRARD T?—rﬁ

BREHNKER-MNESE®
eI
Group Company
8 A
2002 2001 2002 2001
—RE-F —TT-F "RFE-F —TT—F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT 8T BT
Within one year R —%% A 1,425,055 1,007,200 1,114,555 731,200
In the second to —ZE R F
fifth years, (BEE

inclusive M) 8,737,613 323,355 127,114 323,355
10,162,668 1,330,555 1,241,669 1,054,555

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

33. HAREFEIER

The contingent liabilities of the Group and the REZEBR  REBRARAIZEK
Company at the balance sheet date were as follows: RBEWT :
Group Company
£= N
2002 2001 2002 2001
—BE2-Ff _TT-F ZB8-F —TTF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Corporate guarantees  BLIRTT45 T
for banking facilities ~ —FHMERQ
granted to a subsidiary Zfﬁfﬂ:ﬁf’ﬁ = - 171,000,000 171,000,000
2 AR
Guarantees under BHRES
performance bonds ZHBER 109,565,100 62,052,000 = =
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31 December 2002

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2002, banking facilities granted to
the subsidiaries subject to guarantees given by the
Company were utilized as follows:

Bank borrowings RITIEE
Guarantees under BHREE
performance bonds ZER

The securities for the banking facilities are set out in

note 24 to the financial statements.

The Group also has a contingent liability in respect of
possible future long service payments to employees
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, with a
maximum possible amount of HK$1,487,000 as at 31
December 2002, as further explained in note 3 to the
financial statements. The contingent liability has arisen
as a number of existing employees have achieved the
required number of years of service to the Group at
the balance sheet date and accordingly are eligible
for long service payments under the Employment
Ordinance if their employment is terminated under
certain circumstances. A provision has not recognised
in respect of such possible payments, as it is not
considered probable that the situation will result in a

material future outflow of resources from the Group.

—ET-_F+=ZA=+—H

33. HMARMEE (&)

R_EZE_F+_A=+—8 "
B A RIEAREBA{EL 2 BR
MERZRITEESRBRIATA

CATIC International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2002

3’
2002 2001
—EECF —ET—F
HK$ HK$
T BT
44,342,643 36,951
78,396,100 30,883,000
122,738,743 30,919,951

ZERITIEE 2 HRBFAGH
B M4 -

AEBITAKRRBESRERBIEG XK
ReJpEBMEE X RBRES
MEXAREE  ZEXIREER
TEECFFTA=T—HZ&
= A] RE 2158 51,487,000 I
ABEHENMBHREMES - IR
BERAREZLEEHEETD
REERBEIMENEAEE ZAR
BEH  MEEZEEBETS
FRERATHEKRIEBEERBRERE
FEIEPEZRBARES - ARR
AUBEBERATAKAEERAEE
REHIFBERERRL - FTAI
R E e AN 2 RIBTHER
B o
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i 34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BMEALXRS
H_
i
& @) In addition to the transactions and balances (a) MBI RE BT 5
I described elsewhere in the financial statements, NI  REERFA
5 the Group had the following material BETATHEALR
ﬁ transactions with related parties during the year: 2
%
= 2002 2001
b — —EEF
i Notes HK$ HK$
Kt it E BT
Rental expenses paid to a BEAEEY =P
fellow subsidiary ZHeXH (i) 468,000 399,280
Provision for/(write back of) & U — i & 2 7
doubtful receivables DEIRER %A
from the minority DERER Z —fE
shareholder of a subsidiary  IE 2R 2
and a subsidiary of the said RER#EE
minority shareholder (Bm) (ii) (2,093,748) 6,943,958
Notes: Bt &t
(i) On 23 November 2001, the Company entered (i) RZZEZ—F+—A

into a tenancy agreement with Karlane for a
term of one year commencing on 5 November
2001 at a total monthly rental of HK$39,000
(exclusive of rates, management fees and air-
conditioning charges). On 28 November 2002,
the tenancy agreement with Karlane was
renewed with term extended for another 1
year up to 4 November 2003, while other
conditions remained unchanged. The premises
are used as offices of the Company. The
monthly rentals were determined with

reference to open market rentals.

~—+=H " ARQ@H
RN —BHER
&= Al ®m A
39,0008 7T (T RIFE=
il BEEERZEHR
&) HEHRZ=ZZZT—
F+—HAHEB L -
BH—F AAFH
RENUZRERS
ERZZEE=F+—
A+ \BE#H  H
HitR—FE2_FF
=F#+—AmABE &
i 16 3K R 4 B N o
ZWETIREAR A
ZHWAE - A2
ERNRAMBHESE

=

IE ©
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31 December 2002

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i) In the prior year, a full provision of
RMB7,430,000 (equivalent to HK$6,943,958)
was made and charged to the consolidated
profit and loss account in respect of the
unsecured advances made by Hangzhou
Sealand to Asia Capital, the minority
shareholder in Hangzhou Sealand, and & %
HHXEMR A A, a subsidiary of Asia Capital
prior to the acquisition by the Group of the
initial 31% interest in Hangzhou Sealand in
2000. During the year, pursuant to the letter
of consent from Asia Capital dated 30 April
2002, the Group set off dividends of
Hangzhou Sealand payable to Asia Capital
amounting to RMB2,240,310 (equivalent to
HK$2,093,748) against the amount due to the
Group as partial settlement. Accordingly,
provision for doubtful receivables of
HK$2,093,748 was written back to the
consolidated profit and loss account during

the year.

On 28 May 2002, the Group entered into an
income assignment agreement with CATIC
pursuant to which, CATIC agreed to assign 80%
of its interest in the net income in relation to
Project EC120 to the Group at a purchase
consideration of RMB40 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$38 million). Project EC120
is a jointly-controlled operation established in
October 1992 by CATIC in co-operation with
Eurocopter S.A. and Singapore Aerospace Ltd.,
both independent third parties, to develop,
manufacture and globally distribute the multi-
purpose EC120 helicopters. Further details of
this transaction and the financial asset resulted
therefrom are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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34.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

On 28 May 2002, CATIC General Aviation
Holdings Limited (“CATIC GA”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
capital injection agreement with CATIC and
China Siwei Surveying & Mapping Technology
Corporation (“China Siwei”), an independent
third party, pursuant to which CATIC GA agreed
to contribute approximately HK$26.5 million
to CATIC Siwei Co., Ltd. (“CATIC Siwei”),
representing 40% of the registered capital of
CATIC Siwei as enlarged. CATIC Siwei is
principally engaged in the provision of
aerophotographic services in the PRC.

The transaction was completed on 17 January
2003. On completion, CATIC GA’s capital
contribution to CATIC Siwei was adjusted from
the original amount of HK$26.5 million to
HK$25.1 million as a result of reduction of the
unaudited net asset value of CATIC Siwei for
the purpose of determining CATIC GA’s capital
contribution in respect of its 40% equity interest.

On 28 May 2002, the Company entered into an
equity joint venture agreement with China
Siwei, CATIC Siwei and two other independent
third parties. Pursuant to the agreement, a Sino-
foreign equity joint venture entity known as
China Nav-Info Co., Ltd. (“China Nav-Info”) was
established on 3 December 2002 with a term
of 10 years from 3 December 2002 to 2
December 2012 to be engaged in utilising
geographical information system and global
positioning system technologies to manufacture
location-based navigation products and to
provide related services. Pursuant to the equity
joint venture agreement, the Company has
contributed RMB5.9 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$5.56 million) into China
Nav-Info, representing 20% of its registered
capital. Details of this investment are set out in
note 18 to the financial statements.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e)

On 28 May 2002, CATIC GA entered into an
equity joint venture agreement with CATIC
pursuant to which, CATIC GA and CATIC would
contribute HK$24.5 million and HK$25.5
million, respectively, representing 49% and
51%, respectively, of the registered capital of
the equity joint venture. The equity joint venture
would be principally engaged in the provision
of aircraft leasing and related services in the
PRC. The directors of the Company were of the
view that currently the prospect of aircraft
leasing market in the PRC was not as promising
as expected. Accordingly, on 27 January 2003,
CATIC GA and CATIC entered into an agreement
to terminate the relevant equity joint venture
agreement so as to reduce the investment risk
and their respective obligations and liabilities
under the relevant equity joint venture
agreement have thereupon ceased. No capital

contribution has been made by either parties.
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34.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

()

On 4 January 2001, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Speed Profit
to acquire from Speed Profit a further 39%
equity interest in Hangzhou Sealand at a
consideration of HK$81,120,000, which was
determined with reference to the fair market
value of the business interests of Hangzhou
Sealand of approximately HK$208 million as at
31 December 2000 as valued by B.l. Appraisals
Limited, a firm of independent professional
valuers. The consideration was satisfied by a
cash payment of HK$14,999,920 and the issue
and allotment of 508,616,000 new shares in
the Company to Speed Profit at an issue price
of HK$0.13 per share. By reference to the
prevailing market prices of the Company’s shares
at the date of completion, the above new shares
issued were valued at HK$0.11 per share,
resulting in an adjustment of the cost of
acquisition (including legal and professional fees
and related expenses of HK$2,502,556) to
HK$73,622,556 in accordance with the
requirements under SSAP 30. Hangzhou Sealand
became a 70% subsidiary of the Company after
the acquisition. Further details of this acquisition
are disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 22 January 2001.

Details regarding the above transactions (c) to
(f) are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 30 May, 26 August and 29
November 2002 and 30 January 2003 and the
circular dated 20 June 2002 issued by the
Company.
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35.

36.

37.

31 December 2002

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a) On 17 January 2003, the Group completed the
capital injection agreement as further detailed
in note 34(c) to the financial statements.

(b) On 28 March 2003, the Group entered into sale
and purchase agreements with two independent
third parties for the disposal of the two
properties situated in the PRC held for sale (note
20) for an aggregate cash proceeds of
RMB23,610,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$22,486,000).

(c) On 27 January 2003, CATIC GA and CATIC
entered into an agreement to terminate the
relevant equity joint venture agreement as
further detailed in note 34(e) to the financial

statements.

(d)  On 25 February 2003, options in respect of
150,000,000 share were granted to certain of
the directors and employees of the Company,
as further detailed in note 29 to the financial

statements.
COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2 to the financial
statements, due to the adoption of certain new and
revised SSAPs during the current year, the accounting
treatment and presentation of certain items and
balances in the financial statements have been revised
to comply with the new requirements. Accordingly,
certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to

conform with the current year’s presentation.
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2003.
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